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Justin M. Briggs (jmbriggs)

From: Superintendent
Sent: Thursday, February 13, 2020 1:08 PM
To: Justin M. Briggs (jmbriggs); Christopher A. Sorensen (casorensen)
Subject: FW: FYI - FW: Role of PTAs in HCPS on Advocacy

 
 
Cheri Guempel 
Policy & Constituency Services 
Henrico County Public Schools 
Office (804) 652-3714 
Fax (804) 652-3856 
www.henricoschools.us 
HCPS Policies & Regulations 
 

 
 
 
 

From: Kristi B. Kinsella (kbkinsella) <kbkinsella@henrico.k12.va.us>  
Sent: Thursday, February 13, 2020 11:56 AM 
To: Andy Jenks <ajenks@henrico.k12.va.us>; Marcie F. Shea (mfshea) <mfshea@henrico.k12.va.us>; Superintendent 
<Superintendent@henrico.k12.va.us> 
Subject: FYI ‐ FW: Role of PTAs in HCPS on Advocacy 
 
FYI – concern related to redistricting 
 
Kristi 
 

From: Kristi B. Kinsella (kbkinsella)  
Sent: Thursday, February 13, 2020 11:27 AM 
To: Brian Hingst <trihard@hotmail.com> 
Cc: Jennifer C. Gilliland (jcgillil) <jcgillil@henrico.k12.va.us>; bryant8sharita@gmail.com 
Subject: RE: Role of PTAs in HCPS on Advocacy 
 
Mr. Hingst, 
 
Thank you for your kind words regarding my experience and advocacy background.  
 
In addition, thank you for sharing background information addressing your specific PTA concerns with Ms. Gilliland of 
HCPS, HCCPTA President Ms. Bryant, and with me. You are correct in stating PTA governance does not fall within a 
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School Board member’s purview. That said, I appreciate you letting me know what’s happening in our schools’ 
communities as it relates to the redistricting process.  
 
As potential options are discussed and released, community members respond by advocating for their communities. The 
67‐member redistricting committee is currently receiving all community feedback for consideration. If you haven’t 
already done so, it’s imperative for you to share your concerns listed in your email directly with the redistricting 
committee through the link at: https://henricoschools.us/redistricting/.  
 
Latest map options and other pertinent information may also be accessed through this link. Drafts will continue to 
evolve in response to continued feedback and new information. A final redistricting plan is expected to be adopted by 
the School Board in May. Changes would not take effect until 2021‐22 at the earliest. See the schedule below for 
upcoming meetings. 
 
Upcoming Redistricting Meetings: 
Meeting of Combined Committees (The public may observe, but there is no formal public comment opportunity.) 
When: Feb. 19 from 6:00‐8:00 p.m. (This is a change. 6:00 p.m. is the new start time.) 
Where: Jackson Davis Elementary School, 8801 Nesslewood Drive, Henrico, Va. 
 
Public Information Session/Gallery Walk (Public views enlargements of the most recent options and has the opportunity 
to share feedback and ask questions of committee members.) 
When: March 4 beginning at 6:30 p.m. 
Where: L. Douglas Wilder Middle School, 6900 Wilkinson Road, Henrico, Va.  
  
Public Information Session/Gallery Walk (Public views enlargements of the most recent options and has the opportunity 
to share feedback and ask questions of committee members.) 
When: March 5 beginning at 6:30 p.m. 
Where: Hermitage High School, 8301 Hungary Spring Road, Henrico, Va. 
 
I look forward to your continued engagement in the redistricting process. I also encourage your advocacy in the future 
on other education issues that matter to you as a Brookland District constituent.  
 
Warm regards, 
 
Kristi 
 
Mrs. Kristi Kinsella 
Henrico County School Board 
Brookland District 
 
Email: kbkinsella@henrico.k12.va.us 
Cell Phone: (804) 592‐7538 
 
School Board Clerk: Ms. Debbie Ward 
Office: (804) 652‐3808 
Fax: (804) 652‐3856 
 

From: Brian Hingst <trihard@hotmail.com>  
Sent: Wednesday, February 12, 2020 9:49 AM 
To: Kristi B. Kinsella (kbkinsella) <kbkinsella@henrico.k12.va.us> 
Cc: Jennifer C. Gilliland (jcgillil) <jcgillil@henrico.k12.va.us>; bryant8sharita@gmail.com 
Subject: Role of PTAs in HCPS on Advocacy 
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Use Caution: This message originated outside of Henrico County Public Schools. Use caution when opening 
attachments, clicking links or responding to requests for information. 

Dear Ms. Kinsella, 
 
I recently spoke with Ms. Cean Gilliland in the HCPS communications department and Ms. Sharita Bryant, 
President of the HCCPTA regarding a concern surrounding recent communications by PTAs in Henrico 
County.  At their urging they recommended that I advise you of my concern as well. 
 
While neither of these schools involved fall directly under your realm, I live in the Brookland District where 
you are my school board representative. 
 
I have attached correspondence by the Maybeury PTA under its logo and distribution to its membership 
regarding the redistricting process and a flyer being distributed that encourages and advocates a certain 
option be selected over the other.  I have also attached correspondence where the President of the Tuckahoe 
ES is also distributing flyers on behalf of MES. 
 
The concerns I have are as follows: 

 It is my understanding that it is the PTA's role to educate and serve as a platform for schools to educate
membership on issues affecting their children and individual schools.  However, it is not appropriate 
for a PTA to take a stance on an issue unless their membership has been polled and as a whole agrees 
that this is an option that should be officially presented by their PTA. 

 The precedence this sets where PTA's are using their leadership as a conduit for advocacy without the 
membership having the opportunity to weigh in on the issue certainly goes against what the process 
outlined in the bylaws. 

While I certainly support PTAs serving as a catalyst for education and support of schools and our children I 
believe this issue might be a gray area of concern that I felt needed your awareness.  While I understand PTA 
governance does not directly fall under your purview I thought I would follow up as Ms. Gilliand suggested.  I 
am always supportive of advocacy for our children and schools but am wary of situations where leadership my 
overstep its boundaries without ensuring that the position they are presenting undergoes due process by its 
membership. 
 
When I researched candidates running for school board I was impressed by your involvement by serving on 
your children's PTA school boards as well as numerous other roles advocating for our children.  Your 
experience in the trenches certainly garnered my support.  That being said I thank you for your service and 
dedication to HCPS and look forward to hearing from you. 
 
Respectfully, 
 
Brian Hingst 
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Justin M. Briggs (jmbriggs)

From: Kristi B. Kinsella (kbkinsella)
Sent: Wednesday, February 12, 2020 6:23 AM
To: Anna Vest; Superintendent; Christopher A. Sorensen (casorensen); Justin M. Briggs 

(jmbriggs)
Subject: RE: Redistricting plans for Thomas Mill Neighborhood

Good morning, Ms. Vest!  
 
Thank you for documenting and sending your redistricting concerns related to the Thomas Mill/Glen Allen area feeder 
pattern to me. I've included Cherri Guempel, Policy and Constituency Specialist, Chris Sorensen, Chief Financial Officer, 
and Justin Briggs, Planning Specialist, on this email. Mr. Sorensen and Mr. Briggs are responsible for directly monitoring 
the work of the redistricting committee.  
 
Going forward, it is imperative for the redistricting committee to receive all feedback for consideration directly through 
the link at: https://henricoschools.us/redistricting/. Latest map options and other pertinent information may also be 
accessed through this link. Drafts will continue to evolve in response to continued feedback and new information. 
Redistricting recommendations are expected to made to the Henrico County School Board in April. A final redistricting 
plan is expected to be adopted by the School Board in May. Changes would not take effect until 2021‐22 at the earliest. 
See the schedule below for upcoming meetings. 
 
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
  
I look forward to your continued engagement in the process. 
 
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
 
‐‐‐‐‐Original Message‐‐‐‐‐ 
From: Anna Vest <arkvest@gmail.com>  
Sent: Tuesday, February 11, 2020 9:43 PM 
To: Kristi B. Kinsella (kbkinsella) <kbkinsella@henrico.k12.va.us> 
Subject: Redistricting plans for Thomas Mill Neighborhood 
 
Use Caution: This message originated outside of Henrico County Public Schools. Use caution when opening attachments, 
clicking links or responding to requests for information. 
 
________________________________ 
 
Dear Ms. Kinsella‐ 
   I am writing you in regards to the redistricting plans that include the Thomas Mill Neighborhood. Currently, these are 
D3 & E3. I am in support of D3 and I do not support E3. I have concerns about our children being redistricted to 
Hermitage High School for multiple reasons, which I will list below. 
 
        1.) Geographically it does not make sense. Our neighborhood, along with several near us, will have kids on buses or 
driving in their cars past Glen Allen High School (GAHS) on their way to Hermitage High School (HHS). Due to the fact 
that our neighborhood is situated in one of the most northern points of the county our kids will be bussed past 
neighborhoods that are currently zoned for GAHS & are not considered for redistricting despite being much closer 
(within 2 miles) of HHS. This is problematic on multiple levels. Most of the HCPS calculated data indicates that the 
current average travel distance in the county for a high schooler is 2.6 miles, our kids would travel between 5‐6 miles to 
get to Hermitage depending on route, so this figures out to about a 200% increase over the average listed currently. The 
distance to Glen Allen is 3.7 miles (& I’m not sure what the distance is by bus route) which is already above the county 
average, so I would argue, do we really need to be putting our children at greater risk of traffic accidents due to 
increased travel to go to a school that requires driving past a closer one?! 
        2.) The above brings me to my second point, safety. As buses and student drivers drive past GAHS on their way to 
HHS they follow a route that goes through two busy intersections on Staples Mill Road. According  to the Traffic Accident 
Data provided on the interactive map, these intersections have a much higher number of accidents than any 
intersections that would be crossed on the way to GAHS. The route to HHS also involves having to drive through sections 
of Staples Mill Road that see an average daily traffic volume 4‐10 times higher than what they would encounter just 
driving to GAHS. Although, I find our bus drivers to be extremely safe & capable, we all know the dangers of distracted 
drivers. Putting our kids at a high school further away, requiring them to drive or the bus to go through busier sections, 
puts them at greater risk of harm during travel by their own fault or from others. This is a serious concern for me as it 
should be for all parents. 
        3.) My last point has to do with School continuity. Option E3, as drawn, goes against one of the goals presented by 
the redistricting team. It is stated, “effort should be made to ensure the continuity of a child’s K‐12 progress”.  Our 
children would go from Greenwood to Hungary Creek with so many of their friends in neighboring communities only to 
be peeled off and sent to a school further away which does not appear to have a rational reason supporting the move. 
This does not support continuity. It is one thing if a child decides to go to a different middle school or high school based 
on merit & their own volition, but it is an entirely different thing for the county to dictate a high school change that 
separates students who have been together both academically & in an extracurricular capacity for 9 or more years. E3 at 
the high school level impacts the most students county wide & should be particularly scrutinized because it is at the high 
school level where students are closing in on finishing their secondary education & making big decisions about what 
their choices are after graduation (directly into the workforce, trade school, college, etc.). On the surface, it may appear 
to affect less students than you think, but we cannot ignore the fact that current juniors & seniors would be allowed to 
finish their secondary education at their current schools while their younger siblings would be re‐zoned. This splits up 
siblings who have grown up going to school together & may depend on one another as their support system. This puts a 
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hardship on families to split time between two different schools, trying to support multiple children in their academic 
endeavors as well as extracurricular activities. Not every family is shaped the same way & I would hope that HCPS is 
trying to prevent this split from happening, but we need to be cognizant of the fact that parents want to be there for 
their children & splitting them up is going to cause stress & missed opportunities for support on some level. 
   I appreciate you reading this letter & I hope you take this feedback to the redistricting committee. As a constituent 
who voted for you, I hope that you can speak to the best interests of the children & families of this northern part of 
Henrico County. 
Respectfully, 
Anna Vest 
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Justin M. Briggs (jmbriggs)

From: Superintendent
Sent: Monday, February 10, 2020 4:39 PM
To: sarahm5489@aol.com
Cc: schoolboard; Justin M. Briggs (jmbriggs); Christopher A. Sorensen (casorensen)
Subject: FW: Rising 2020/2021 Grades K, 6th, & 9th School Request

Good afternoon,  
 
Thank you for taking the time to share your concerns and suggestions. I am responding on behalf of Dr. Cashwell. 
 
If you haven’t done so, it is essential that the points noted in your e‐mail be shared with the committee. This can be 
done online. The best way to communicate your concerns is through our 
website:  https://henricoschools.us/redistricting/. All comments received are provided to the committee to review.  All 
information and progress of the committee are posted on our website as well. 
 
Redistricting is a challenging process for school systems and the communities they serve. 
 
The School Board will not make any final decisions regarding redistricting until the spring of 2020. A lot can happen for 
the committee as they work to make recommendations to the School Board. 
 
Your input is important in the process. Please do not fail to communicate to the committee charged with this task. 
 
I have copied Chris Sorensen, Chief of Finance, and Justin Briggs, Education Specialist for Planning. Both are monitoring 
the work of the committee. 
 
Again, I appreciate you sharing your concerns, 
 
Cheri Guempel 
Policy & Constituency Services 
Henrico County Public Schools 
Office (804) 652-3714 
Fax (804) 652-3856 
www.henricoschools.us 
HCPS Policies & Regulations 
 

 

From: sarahm5489@aol.com <sarahm5489@aol.com>  
Sent: Thursday, February 6, 2020 3:58 PM 
To: schoolboard <schoolboard@henrico.k12.va.us> 
Subject: Rising 2020/2021 Grades K, 6th, & 9th School Request 
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Use Caution: This message originated outside of Henrico County Public Schools. Use caution when opening 
attachments, clicking links or responding to requests for information. 

Members of the School Board, 
  
We are writing to you as parents with children entering Kindergarten this fall. We have been following the redistricting process 
closely, but we are both new to the process and to HCPS. We have an idea we would like to share with the Board in hopes that it 
could be discussed at one of your upcoming meetings. We are aware that the Board voted to allow rising 5th, 8th, and 11‐12th graders 
for 2021‐22 to remain at their current schools if families are able to provide transportation. This is a great way to provide continuity 
to these students, and it is gracious of the Board to offer this accommodation to families in this position. Has the Board considered a 
similar policy where rising 1st, 7th, and 10th graders for 2021‐22 could have the option to start at their new school instead of their 
currently zoned school in 2020‐21? This would prevent many students from attending two schools in two years for the youngest 
group (1st graders) and three schools in three years for the older groups (7th and 10th graders). 
  
We both have children who will be starting Kindergarten this coming school year at Longan ES where we are currently zoned. None 
of the options presented thus far have us staying at Longan ES, so it seems very likely we are moving. We understand that further 
edits to the maps will continue, but, based on the most recent committee maps, it seems likely we will be zoned for Echo Lake ES. 
  
We noticed that the committee meeting presentations say that “provisions should be made to ensure the continuity of a child’s K‐12 
progress” and this “may be accomplished by offering older students in a school the option to remain at an existing school if parents 
provide transportation.” We feel a similar accommodation could benefit rising Kindergarteners, 6th and 9th graders in 2020‐21 by 
allowing them the option to start at their new school this fall, ensuring continuity of their K‐12 progress. In our specific situation, 
Longan ES is near capacity while Echo Lake ES has plenty of room. Allowing this option would not only provide stability for our young 
children, but it would also provide relief to Longan while increasing utilization at Echo Lake – a win‐win for everyone. If applied to 
these three classes, this accommodation would minimize the number of students needing to attend two different elementary, 
middle, or high schools during their academic careers. Additionally, redistricting guidelines state that “implementation of a rezoning 
plan over a span of several years would be preferable if it has the effect of minimizing the need for additional boundary changes for 
a community in the near or immediate future.” This proposal echoes the spirit of that guideline as well. 
  
We have personally considered applying for variances, but after studying the variance application, we found that, unfortunately, 
there is not a listed reason that applies directly to these types of situations. Based on how it currently reads, we are unsure of our 
chances for success. We are also unsure if there would be fairness across the county as Principals of the affected schools typically 
make decisions on variances except when individual cases are appealed to the Board. Additionally, variance requests for high 
schools are due by February 15 and elementary and middle schools are due by April 15, but the Board does not vote on the final 
redistricting maps until late May. This timeline would make variance requests appear very conditional, and we fear it may be harder 
to gain approval for them, if even possible. 
  
We kindly ask the Board to consider the idea of allowing the option for rising Kindergarteners, 6th graders, and 9th graders to attend 
their new redistricted school this coming 2020‐21 school year if families provide transportation. We feel this would further promote 
K‐12 continuity and prevent multiple transitions in such a short period of time for these students. 
  
If this is not possible for reasons that extend beyond our knowledge, an alternative could be to allow the Principals to consider these 
situations when approving variances this year. If this were done, some kind of conditional provision could be included (i.e. variance 
approval pending final boundaries decided by the Board in May). We fully support allowing the older children to stay in their current 
schools to finish out their time there but also hope to ensure that the younger children are offered similar stability, if possible. We 
appreciate your time and consideration of this idea. 
  
Sarah Stewart and Jennifer Cahoon 
  



Three Chopt District 
Comments 
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Justin M. Briggs (jmbriggs)

From: Jon Kessen <stonegate.jk@gmail.com>
Sent: Thursday, February 13, 2020 3:35 AM
To: Cheryl L. Guempel (clguempel)
Cc: Justin M. Briggs (jmbriggs)
Subject: Re: Stonegate (a.k.a. Covered Bridge) - Redistricting Feedback - Draft Maps E-1, E-2 

and E-3: Public Feedback Comments - cont.

Use Caution: This message originated outside of Henrico County Public Schools. Use caution when opening 
attachments, clicking links or responding to requests for information. 

Good Morning Cheri,  
 
Appreciate the quick feedback. How about a scheduled phone call then? Please let me know the scheduling availability. 
This standard has been set by the HCPS administration previously. See excerpt below: 
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I remain deeply concerned that student safety is not a criteria for the redistricting process.  
 
I’m also concerned by the lack of ACTION following our on‐going feedback. 
 
As noted, the redistricting criteria are not achieved on the E‐1, E‐2, or E‐3 maps for Stonegate/Covered Bridge or the 
adjacent neighborhoods.  
 
Corrective Action is required. 
 
Regards, 
 
Jon 
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Sent from my iPhone 
 
 

On Feb 12, 2020, at 9:18 AM, Cheryl L. Guempel (clguempel) <clguempel@henrico.k12.va.us> wrote: 

  
Good morning, Mr. Kessen, 
  
Dr. Cashwell receives all emails to this email account.  I cannot speak to why or which items the 
committee discusses.   
  
Dr. Cashwell is not able to schedule appointments with individuals to discuss redistricting.  The reasons 
for this are:  
all input/feedback needs to be transparent and provided to the redistricting committee.  Private 
conversations would circumvent that process, and 
if Dr. Cashwell meets with one family, she would have to meet with everyone who requested a meeting 
to discuss redistricting.  Unfortunately, this is not feasible. 
  
Given these reasons, we are ensuring the committee receives all feedback and comments are posted as 
part of the public comment.  
  
I see you have copied Justin Briggs.  He will ensure the committee receives your additional feedback. 
  
Kind regards, 
  
Cheri Guempel 
Policy & Constituency Services 
Henrico County Public Schools 
Office (804) 652-3714 
Fax (804) 652-3856 
www.henricoschools.us 
HCPS Policies & Regulations 
  

<image001.png> 
  
  
  

From: Jon Kessen <stonegate.jk@gmail.com>  
Sent: Tuesday, February 11, 2020 11:46 PM 
To: Superintendent <Superintendent@henrico.k12.va.us>; Cheryl L. Guempel (clguempel) 
<clguempel@henrico.k12.va.us> 
Cc: Justin M. Briggs (jmbriggs) <jmbriggs@henrico.k12.va.us> 
Subject: Stonegate (a.k.a. Covered Bridge) ‐ Redistricting Feedback ‐ Draft Maps E‐1, E‐2 and E‐3: Public 
Feedback Comments 
  

Use Caution: This message originated outside of Henrico County Public Schools. Use caution 
when opening attachments, clicking links or responding to requests for information. 
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Dr. Cashwell, Cheri,  
  
Good evening. Can you confirm if Dr. Cashwell has received and reviewed this e‐mail chain and its 
concerns? 
  
I’m concerned that Cropper and the Committee are not discussing and ACTING on this continued public 
feedback.  
  
Again, another map, now E‐3 has been issued, failing to act on the extensive public feedback on the E‐1 
and E‐2 maps as it relates to Stonegate/Covered Bridge and our adjacent neighborhoods.  
  
Why are the “E” maps returning to draft HS boundaries of the “A” and “B” maps that have been 
extensively discussed and rejected?  
  
—> These map options ignore student safety for our neighborhood.  
  
Why was the Tucker/Godwin boundaries not discussed in last week’s meetings?  
  
Public feedback was clearly provided on this point ahead of the meetings.  
  
As we have the new E‐3 map issued, I’ve updated the attached materials to reflect the current options E‐
1, E‐2, and E‐3.  
  
Why are community proposed options which would affect far fewer students not even being 
considered?  
  
We should affect the fewest number of students as possible in this process. 
  
Additionally, I’m requesting a meeting with Dr. Cashwell. Please advise on her available meeting times.  
  

Justin, 

  
Please consider this additional outreach and public feedback to share with Cropper and 
the Committee.  

  
As you are interacting directly with both Cropper and the Committee can you ensure this is on the 
agenda for next week?  
  
I understand that the Committee has the responsibility to ACT on public feedback and take some 
Sharpies to these maps.  
  
Let’s be focused on student safety, protecting our neighborhood schools, and affecting the fewest 
students as possible.  
  
Should you have any questions, let me know. 
  

<image002.jpg> 



8



9
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Regards, 
  
Jon 
  
Sent from my iPhone 
 
Begin forwarded message: 

From: Jon Kessen <stonegate.jk@gmail.com> 
Date: February 4, 2020 at 3:34:37 PM EST 
To: "Cheryl L. Guempel (clguempel)" <clguempel@henrico.k12.va.us> 
Cc: "Justin M. Briggs (jmbriggs)" <jmbriggs@henrico.k12.va.us> 
Subject: Re:  Stonegate (a.k.a. Covered Bridge) ‐ Redistricting Feedback ‐ Draft Maps A, 
B, E‐1, and E‐2 ‐ Public Feedback Comments 

Cheri,  
  
Thanks for your e‐mail. I completely agree these feedbacks must be shared and ACTED 
on by the Committee (and Cropper in proposing options and updated maps). It’s why 
the E‐1 and E‐2 maps are so concerning as they contain markups beyond the C map that 
was created in response to the public feedback on the A and B maps. I also note that the 
Committee members themselves were not aligned on the edits for Stonegate and the 
adjacent neighborhoods noted by the handwritten comments from the last committee 
meeting some folks preferred the existing C map boundaries for 
Godwin/Freeman/Tucker which reflected the public comments previously provided on 
the A and B maps.  
  
I do hope that Dr. Cashwell has received this e‐mail. If not, I kindly request it be 
forwarded onto her.  
  
Hopefully the A, B, and now E‐1, and E‐2 maps are an oversight as it relates to Stonegate 
and the adjacent neighborhoods. 
  
Clearly they do not take student safety into account.  
  

What’s also concerning is that I do not see a discussion on Godwin vs. 
Tucker relating to the E maps on Cropper’s worksheets for this week’s 
Committee meetings. This is unacceptable and ignoring both student 
safety and public feedback. 

  
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

<image004.jpg> 
 
<image005.jpg> 
Sent from my iPhone 
 
 
 

On Feb 4, 2020, at 12:59 PM, Cheryl L. Guempel (clguempel) 
<clguempel@henrico.k12.va.us> wrote: 

  
Good afternoon, Mr. Kessen, 
  
Thank you for taking the time to share your concerns. I am responding 
on behalf of Dr. Cashwell. 
  
If you haven’t done so, it is essential that the points noted in your e‐mail 
be shared with the committee. This can be done online. The best way to 
communicate your concerns is through our 
website:  https://henricoschools.us/redistricting/. All comments 
received are provided to the committee to review.  All information and 
progress of the committee are posted on our website as well. 
  
Your input is important in the process. Please do not fail to 
communicate to the committee charged with this task. 
  
I have copied Justin Briggs, Education Specialist for Planning. He is 
monitoring the work of the committee. 
  
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
Sent: Tuesday, February 4, 2020 11:35 AM 
To: Superintendent <Superintendent@henrico.k12.va.us> 
Subject: Stonegate (a.k.a. Covered Bridge) ‐ Redistricting Feedback ‐ 
Draft Maps A, B, E‐1, and E‐2 
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Use Caution: This message originated outside of Henrico County Public 
Schools. Use caution when opening attachments, clicking links or 
responding to requests for information. 
 
________________________________ 
 
Dr. Cashwell, 
 
Good morning. I wanted to reach out to you following the School Board 
Meeting last Thursday evening. 
> 
> As raised by several citizens of Stonegate (a.k.a. Covered Bridge) in 
their remarks to the School Board, it’s critical both Cropper and the 
Committee receive the following feedback for ACTION this week as they 
update the draft maps. 
>> 
>> The recent HS proposals E‐1 and E‐2 continue to ignore the feedback 
provided numerous times regarding proposals A and B all of which 
move Stonegate (a.k.a. Covered Bridge) from Godwin HS. 
>> 
>> Godwin HS is our neighborhood HS and safe walking distance from 
our homes!! 
>> 
>> It’s only 1/2 mile between Stonegate property boundary and Godwin 
HS property boundary!!! 
>> 
>> Please review the attachments!!! 
>> 
>> Yet options A, B, and now E‐1 and E‐2 propose changing us to Tucker. 
>> 
>> This is UNACCEPTABLE and NOT supported by this neighborhood. 
>> 
>> Look at the safety impacts of student walkers and young drivers on 
the following roads between Tucker and Stonegate: Parham, 
Pemberton, Three Chopt and Gaskins!! 
>> 
>> This is completely unsafe and unnecessary when you can be on 
Godwin property within 800 yards of Stonegate!!! 
 

That’s less than seven (7) football 🏈 fields considering the end zones!!! 
>> 
>> Please focus on student safety!!! We have students who are HS 
walkers and young drivers!!! 
>> 
>> This is clearly represented by the public feedback provided at the 
School Board Meeting on Thursday, Jan. 30, 2020 from citizens from 
Stonegate. 
>> 
>> It’s imperative that Cropper and the Committee receive and ACT on 
this feedback at their meetings this week when discussing modifications 
to the draft maps. 
>> 
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>> I do not see a discussion on Godwin vs. Tucker relating to the E maps 
on Cropper’s worksheets. This is unacceptable. 
>> 
>> Stonegate’s proposed zoning must be discussed and updated. 
>> 
<image002.jpg> 

<image006.jpg> 
 
 
 

>>  
>>  
>>  
>> more detail provided: 
>>  
<image003.jpg> 

<image007.jpg> 
 
 
 

>>  
>>  
>  
> Additionally, Cropper and Committee should consider options that 
affect the fewest number of students. I recall some citizens presented 
options which were in the lower 100’s at the School Board Meeting vs. 
the current Cropper options in the 1,000’s. 
>  
>> Should you have any questions, let me know. 
>>  
>> Regards, 
>>  
>> Jon Kessen 
>> Stonegate Resident 
>>  
>>  
>> Sent from my iPhone 
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Comments 
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Justin M. Briggs (jmbriggs)

From: Melinda Winterhalter <melinsean@verizon.net>
Sent: Sunday, February 16, 2020 4:04 PM
To: Christopher A. Sorensen (casorensen); Justin M. Briggs (jmbriggs); Matthew Cropper
Subject: Updated Economically Disadvantage Map in PDF
Attachments: HS Economically Disadvantaged with    text.pdf

Use Caution: This message originated outside of Henrico County Public Schools. Use caution when opening 
attachments, clicking links or responding to requests for information. 

 

Mr. Cropper, Mr. Sorensen and Mr. Briggs, 
I am not able to attach this to the General Feedback Form. Can you please ensure the committee members have it this 
week, prior to their meeting on Wednesday. 
Thanks, 
Melinda Winterhalter 



 

g 

This area (Crestview) is 

removed from Freeman HS 

in HS Option D4. 

These areas (Pemberton/River 

Rd. Corridor) remain at Freeman 

HS in HS Option D4. 

At the high school level, note the stark differences of concentrations of 

poverty between HS Option E4 and D4.  The darker the shade of green the 

higher the concentration of poverty.  This illustrates the fact that option 

D4 moves a pocket of poverty out of Freeman into Tucker and creates an 

even higher pocket of poverty at Tucker.  
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Justin M. Briggs (jmbriggs)

From: Melinda Winterhalter <melinsean@verizon.net>
Sent: Sunday, February 16, 2020 3:16 PM
To: Christopher A. Sorensen (casorensen); Justin M. Briggs (jmbriggs); Matthew Cropper; 

Monica R. Manns (mmanns); Cara Jean L. O'Neal (cloneal)
Subject: A type of pocket of poverty in the Crestview Elem. Community

Use Caution: This message originated outside of Henrico County Public Schools. Use caution when opening 
attachments, clicking links or responding to requests for information. 

Dear Mr. Cropper and School Board Associates,  
 
I am writing this letter to let you be aware of a certain pocket of poverty that we have at Crestview 
Elementary. We have had several families  whose children attend Crestview, who live in a hotel on West 
Broad Street.  I was introduced to one family in March 2017 when their daughter was in my son's 3rd 
grade class.  This family of 5 (3 children - ages 2, 4, 9) moved here from out of the area when the father 
got a job downtown. They chose this hotel as it was the cheapest they could find and on direct GRTC bus 
route which they needed, in order for the father to have transportation to work.  The family was paying a 
weekly rate at the hotel, but not always able to make the "rent".  In the meantime, the mother discovered 
that she had a brain aneurysm.  She needed to have major brain surgery to have this removed.  At the 
same time, the family was going to be homeless as they were getting kicked out of the hotel for not 
having the $ for "rent".  Crestview parents stepped in to provide money to keep them in the hotel and at 
the same time help with some other ongoing issues the family was dealing with.  If they became 
homeless, they would have had to be separated  while going to different shelters.  These parents had no 
other family, no car, neither one had ever gotten a drivers license and they had no credit.  They were now 
in crisis mode. 
 
Our community became very involved with this family. Our goal was to help them find stable housing 
before the mother's brain surgery in June, so that she would have a comfortable place to come home 
and  recover.  
 
I spent nearly every day with this mother and her two younger children on some sort of task. Getting birth 
certificates for her children in order to apply for food stamps, apply for housing assistance with Homeless 
Point of Entry, Richmond Housing Authority, Rapid Rehousing, Housing Family First,  doctors 
appointments,  ER visits, Medicaid appointments, grocery shopping, collecting clothes for children, 
laundry mats, etc. Trust me, if there was a roadblock, this family saw it and we dealt with it step by step.   
 
Finally in May, they received word that they were approved for housing in Whitcomb Court. The next day, 
a VA State Trooper was shot and killed in Whitcomb Court. My husband and I decided we could not have 
the family move there, for their own safety and my husband's fear for my safety as I was now a caretaker 
to her children and would be a caretaker for her after surgery.  We decided we needed to find an 
apartment that would let us co-sign on their lease and we would help them each month with payment on 
their lease. This was a hard task in itself, as it needed to be on the bus line and not all apartments allow 
for co-signer if not living in the apartment. But, we knew that if we could find an apartment to do this, it 
would help them build up their credit for the future.  
 
We finally found an apartment  in June and they were able to move in on that last day of school! Our 
community moved them in and furnished the apartment and provided them with all the essentials we 
could think of.  They  were able to get settled in before the mother's July brain surgery!  
I think this is an important story to tell as it lets you know about a specific type of poverty some Crestview 
families are dealing with, living out of hotel because do not have credit to even lease an apartment 
and/or  their own means of transportation to get to a job. Many move to our area as they have to rely on 
the bus service GRTC provides up and down this Broad Street Corridor.  
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I hope that this helps you understand a little more about certain pockets of poverty in the Crestview 
Community, as you look at redistricting and adhere to the guidelines you have set forth in reducing 
concentration of poverty at our schools. Keeping Crestview at Freeman adheres to this guideline. 
  
Respectfully, 
Melinda Winterhalter 
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Justin M. Briggs (jmbriggs)

From: patrick stage <we4stages@gmail.com>
Sent: Friday, February 14, 2020 1:26 PM
To: Christopher A. Sorensen (casorensen); Matthew Cropper; Justin M. Briggs (jmbriggs)
Subject: Data to support option E3
Attachments: HCPS_HS_D3_and_E3_Plot_Maps_200206_distribution of wealth comparison.pdf

Use Caution: This message originated outside of Henrico County Public Schools. Use caution when opening 
attachments, clicking links or responding to requests for information. 

To all tasked with this difficult and important decision - 

If one of the counties' true goals is to evenly distribute the concentration of poverty within its schools then I hope you will 
look at the attached comparison. It clearly shows that the E3 option does a better job with this distribution than option D3. 

Attached is D3 & E3 plot maps with average home value data that I put together using Zillow. -Note: this is focused on 
homes and not apartments. This is just an estimate but should be fairly close. This visual aid does a good job of showing 
the distribution of wealth between the two areas impacted by these options.  
You will notice that both options have around the same number of homes but option E3 has an average home value that 
is $66,000 more than homes in D3 ( that's an additional income for most families). You will also notice that D3 has two 
areas where average home values are significantly lower than any average in E3. In the lowest area of D3 the average 
home value is $206,000 while E3's low is $340,000 ( that's a huge gap!!!). As you will see option D3 will funnel children of 
families with much lower incomes on average to Tucker Highschool however option E3 will funnel children of families 
with much higher income on average. Based on this data option E3 clearly shows it is in-line with the county's goals 
significantly more than option D3. 

Also on the map, you will see a comparison in distances to Tucker Highschool. Option E3's furthest distance to Tucker is 
around 3 miles while option D3's furthest distance is 
5.25 miles ( that's 2.25 miles further than E3). When it comes to closer proximity to schools E3 does a better job. 

As you can see option E3 wins in both cases. 

I hope you will take the time to dig into my research further as I'm sure you will find yours to align, Especially when your 
further research adds data from the large apartment complex located at Horsepen rd. and Miami ave. 

P.s the map takes a little time to load.

Thanks 
Patrick 
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Justin M. Briggs (jmbriggs)

From: Superintendent
Sent: Friday, February 14, 2020 9:30 AM
To: Rachel Sweeney
Cc: Christopher A. Sorensen (casorensen); Justin M. Briggs (jmbriggs)
Subject: RE: Crestview-Tuckahoe-Freeman

Good morning, Ms. Sweeney, 
 
Thank you for taking the time to share your concerns. I am responding on behalf of Dr. Cashwell. 
 
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
 

 
 
 
 

From: Rachel Sweeney <sweeneyrachel@yahoo.com>  
Sent: Thursday, February 13, 2020 3:48 PM 
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To: Superintendent <Superintendent@henrico.k12.va.us> 
Subject: Crestview‐Tuckahoe‐Freeman 
 

Use Caution: This message originated outside of Henrico County Public Schools. Use caution when opening 
attachments, clicking links or responding to requests for information. 

Good afternoon, 
 
We chose to move to Wythe Avenue, near Willow Lawn, in 2006 from Chesapeake Virginia because we loved the area 
and the schools associated with our address (Crestview-Tuckahoe-Freeman). Crestview Elementary services a very 
special group of people within Henrico. Our community is small, and the people we have met while attending Crestview, 
Tuckahoe and Freeman are what make our area so unique. We have people from many different socio-economic groups 
ranging from poverty level to upper middle class at Crestview. If Crestview is moved to Tucker this will only increase the 
amount of students at the poverty level at Tucker. The neighborhoods that are located off of Parham Rd (Sleepy Hollow) 
make more sense as they would not increase poverty at Tucker, and the route to and from school would not involve the 
interstate. 
 
I am excited about having a state of the art school, Tucker, in Henrico but the idea of sending my novice teenage drivers 
on the suggested route (I-64 or Broad) terrifies me as a parent. Monument to Three Chopt makes more sense to me, 
which has them driving past Freeman. I am also concerned about entering and exiting Tucker onto Parham. This seems 
like a very dangerous area. 
 
I support the idea of moving the Leadership School out of Freeman as those students are fairly isolated from the student 
body, or either moving forward with building adjustments to the existing Freeman campus to allow our small school, 
Crestview,  to stay at Freeman.  
 
Thank you for your time and consideration. 
 
Sincerely, 
Rachel Sweeney 
Wythe Avenue and Westlyn  
804-304-0013 
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Justin M. Briggs (jmbriggs)

From: Sachi Shimomura <sshimomu@vcu.edu>
Sent: Friday, February 14, 2020 12:04 AM
To: Matthew Cropper; Christopher A. Sorensen (casorensen); Justin M. Briggs (jmbriggs)
Subject: redistricting

Use Caution: This message originated outside of Henrico County Public Schools. Use caution when opening 
attachments, clicking links or responding to requests for information. 

To whom it may concern:  
 
I am strongly opposed to HS options D1‐D3, and in favor of HS options E1‐E3 that keeps Crestview zone in Freeman High 

School. I live in Duntreath and have one daughter in 6th grade at Tuckahoe M.S., just a block away from Freeman H. 

S.  She will have friends and members of her gymnastics teams (both through Middle School gymnastics and through her 

club gymnastics) entering Freeman next year—currently, nine girls—as well as various friends she’s known for years 

through the Tuckahoe YMCA programs. If Crestview is rezoned for Tucker, she and many others in the Crestvivew 

elementary zone will lose years of school and community connections with friends across all socio‐economic groups.  

In addition, the HS options D1‐D3 splits part of Three Chopt Elementary and Crestview into different high school zones 

and disrupts community. Many families we know have had children in both, including ours. Since Three Chopt 

Elementary is the zone school attended by quite a number of gifted‐identified students from Crestview (Three Chopt’s 

YMCA after‐school program currently even resides at Crestview, there are very strong links between the communities 

of the two schools and also with the rest of the Patterson Ave. area schools. My 1st grade daughter at Crestview 

already has many friends from Three Chopt. 

Thus, to repeat: If Crestview is rezoned for Tucker, both my daughter, our many neighbors, and many others in the 

Crestview elementary zone will lose years of school and community connections with friends across all socio‐

economic groups. This seems particularly hard after my older daughter has already had a number of friends from the 

gifted zone program go to other middle schools—but she consoled herself with the idea that at least many of those 

friends she makes in middle school, and many friends from gymnastics and YMCA,  would attend the same high school 

with her. However, if the rezoning separates the Crestview area from the other near‐Westend schools on either side 

of Patterson, these many community connections will be broken.   

If my older daughter is rezoned to Tucker, she will be 4.6 miles away (by the quickest route, via 64) from her younger 

sister (currently in 1st grade) at Crestview Elementary, and 4.8 miles away from home. This seems utterly ridiculous 

when Freeman is only 2.6 miles away (2.4 miles from home) and doesn’t require a highway for the fastest route.  

When my younger daughter enters Tuckahoe M. S., she will still be 2.4 miles away from her sister’s high school, rather 

than within walking distance (like Freeman H.S. would be). This seems utterly ridiculous when she does NOT live 

anywhere near Tucker H.S., and her currently zoned elementary and middle schools are nowhere near Tucker, either. 

In addition, many of the Crestview students are of minority groups of varied socio‐economic status. (My children are 

mixed race and one of the reasons I was happy to move into this area several  years ago was the unusually high mix of 

different minority groups at Crestview. ) The school has also hovered right below the 50% level for free/reduced 

lunches for some years now. This is a unique school. Transferring Crestview out of Freeman H. S. zone would seem like 

a clear case of moving socioeconomic diversity out of Freeman and disenfranchising their voices.   
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As a professor at VCU, I am highly uneasy if HCPS continues to contemplate such a decision based upon other, richer 

communities being able to summon up more voices to object to redistricting that affects them. Please don’t ignore the 

fact that some members of this area do not have the language ability and technology to speak up as I am doing.  But I 

hope those of you who are making the redistricting decisions will see how much HS option D1‐D3 would conflict with 

many of the stated HCPS principles behind the rezoning. I hope you will follow HS option E3, or another option that 

maintains Crestview’s connection with the surrounding communities zoned for Freeman. 

Thank you for your time. 

S. Shimomura 
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Justin M. Briggs (jmbriggs)

From: Somer Sentz <somer.sentz@gmail.com>
Sent: Thursday, February 13, 2020 9:40 PM
To: Marcie F. Shea (mfshea)
Cc: Michelle F. Ogburn (mfogburn1); Christopher A. Sorensen (casorensen); Justin M. 

Briggs (jmbriggs)
Subject: Re: Not all data is being recorded for the committee

Use Caution: This message originated outside of Henrico County Public Schools. Use caution when opening 
attachments, clicking links or responding to requests for information. 

Hi Marcie,  
 
I really appreciate you getting back to me.  Thanks so much for your feedback, but it does unfortunately seem like the 
system is flawed as a lot of our comments and communication that were done via emails to the superintendent and 
board members were not collected for the committee.  It states from the superintendents reply—”As Ms. Guempel 
shared, the redistricting committee will take this feedback into consideration. ”  
This makes me curious how many other people ( not just our district) has important information missing that should 
technically be available to the committee.  
Thank you so much for looking into this and again for all you do. It is appreciated greatly.  
 
Thank you, 
Somer Sentz  

Sent from my iPhone 
 
 

On Feb 13, 2020, at 6:02 PM, Marcie F. Shea (mfshea) <mfshea@henrico.k12.va.us> wrote: 

  
Somer, 
  
The short answer is that who compiles the information depends how the information is submitted. 
  
My understanding is: 
Comments submitted on the feedback link are compiled by Cropper. 
Emails that sent to or copied to the planning department are compiled by our planning department and 
sent to Cropper to send to the committee.  
Emails sent to board members or the superintendent are not compiled unless they are also sent to the 
planning department. That is why in every response we urge you to submit your feedback to the link in 
or to ensure it gets to the committee. 
  
I hope that provides clarity. 
 
Marcie 
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From: Somer Sentz <somer.sentz@gmail.com>  
Sent: Thursday, February 13, 2020 2:53 PM 
To: Marcie F. Shea (mfshea) <mfshea@henrico.k12.va.us>; Michelle F. Ogburn (mfogburn1) 
<mfogburn1@henrico.k12.va.us> 
Subject: Not all data is being recorded for the committee 
  

Use Caution: This message originated outside of Henrico County Public Schools. Use caution 
when opening attachments, clicking links or responding to requests for information. 

 
Hi Chairwomen Shea and Ogburn,   
I apologize for all of my messages today but I have a big concern.  I have multiple emails to all school 
board members as well the superintendent that were not included on emails through Feb 10th or on the 
emails through January 31st.  I have searched both of the recent emails which should include the one 
below and it is not included. I am not the only Maybeury, Tuckahoe, or Freeman family that does’t see 
their email there either.  I am curious who goes through this information to determine what is 
submitted? That shows a lot of bias if all emails are not present for the committee.   I do not think this is 
a fair representation of our school if our emails are not included too. Please inform as you can.  
  
Thanks,  
Somer Sentz 
  
 
 
 

Begin forwarded message: 
  
From: "Amy E. Cashwell (aecashwell)" <aecashwell@henrico.k12.va.us> 
Subject: re: In regards to Redistricting 
Date: February 4, 2020 at 4:12:53 PM EST 
To: "somer.sentz@gmail.com" <somer.sentz@gmail.com> 
Cc: "Marcie F. Shea (mfshea)" <mfshea@henrico.k12.va.us>, "Christopher A. 
Sorensen (casorensen)" <casorensen@henrico.k12.va.us> 
  
Dear Somer, 
I understand that Ms. Guempel has already replied on my behalf, but I did want to take 
a moment to reach out to you and let you know that I have received, and thoroughly 
reviewed the email you sent me in regard to redistricting, specifically your advocacy for 
Option D2.  Thank you for taking the time to share your thoughts with me directly.  As 
Ms. Guempel shared, the redistricting committee will take this feedback into 
consideration.  Community input is an important part of this process and thus it is truly 
appreciated.   
Sincerely, 
Amy  
  
Amy E. Cashwell, Ed.D. 
Superintendent 
Henrico County Public Schools 
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From: Somer Sentz <somer.sentz@gmail.com>  
Sent: Friday, January 31, 2020 9:31 PM 
To: Superintendent <Superintendent@henrico.k12.va.us> 
Cc: Marcie F. Shea (mfshea) <mfshea@henrico.k12.va.us> 
Subject: Please Reply‐ In regards to Redistricting 
  

 
Hi Dr. Cashwell.  
  
I first want to thank you for taking the time to read this email.  I know you are very busy 
and I can’t thank you enough for all you have done for our county since coming to the 
position.  It is very appreciated.  
  
To give you a short background of my situation to bring you up to speed.  I am parent of 
four children.  Our elementary school is Maybeury Elementary School and we have been 
watching the redistricting process every step of the way.  There have been three options 
that split up our elementary school.  Option B and E1 and E2.  Option E1 and E2 we’re 
just released earlier this week.  They completely divide our entire community. When 
looking at the map it is not making any logical sense why Option E1 and E2 were even 
released as they dispute the original l goals of the county and break up the most 
communities.  Literally houses right across the street from our neighbors would be 
attending different schools.  Long story short, Maybeury Elementary School is already a 
very diverse school.  We love the diversity and are thankful for the strong and 
supportive community we have.  In a crazy and scary world it gives me peace to think of 
the comfort and safety my children get because of this strong and diverse 
community.  This is why we as a school DO NOT support Option E1 or E2.  They break us 
up. We lose so much of what these kids have worked so hard to for over the past many 
years.  Even more, they don’t abide with the overall goals of the entire process.  We 
have been crunching data numbers and trying really hard to understand why E is even 
an option.  To spit these kids from over 60 percent of their elementary school and then 
to turn around and split them from the new group they would go to QMS with, doesn’t 
seem like we are setting this kids up for a strong support system.  I know in the world 
we live in, they need that community and they need the support.   
  
We are heartbroken to see hour community divided in this final hour of the redistricting 
process.  The fact that we can not speak at next weeks meetings does not seem like a 
fair process considering that other schools had that chance in the previous meetings.   
Maybeury is already a very diverse school. To split this group up (when the numbers do 
not make sense to meet the goals the county put forth) is not the right vote. It is 
beautiful to see the friendships created and the vast diversity our children are fortunate 
to be around.  To break up this community at such a crucial age‐‐sixth grade.  Only to go 
on to separate even more in the middle to high school change just doesn't make 
sense.  When looking over each option and data involved OPTION E is the option that 
breaks the most communities up.  Option D2 benefits not only Maybeury, but 
Pemberton, Short pump Elementary as well as many others.  There seems to be only 
one elementary school truly in favor of Option E.  Statistically and if truly focusing on the 
goals of the county it would not make sense to choose either of the option Es.  We have 
many people reviewing all of the data right now and the numbers are not adding 
up.  The number shift doesn't add up to meet the goals that the county originally 
stated.  Option D seems to break up the least amount of communities. I would love to 
speak to you in person if possible. 540‐270‐8907 
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Option D2 will break up the least amount of communities. Please stand by us! .   
Please keep our county strong by breaking up the least amount of communities.  I know 
you have already done great things for our county—I was impressed with you after your 
first email when you first arrived.  Lead us and keep us together.  You have our 
support—please give us your support.   
  
Again, thank you for your time.  
  
Thanks,  
Somer Sentz 
540‐270‐8907 
Maybeury Elementary School Parent 
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Justin M. Briggs (jmbriggs)

From: Superintendent
Sent: Thursday, February 13, 2020 4:57 PM
To: McNamara, Jonathan
Cc: Christopher A. Sorensen (casorensen); Justin M. Briggs (jmbriggs)
Subject: RE: Concerns About Redistricting 

Good evening, Mr. McNamara, 
 
 
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
 

 
 
 
 

From: McNamara, Jonathan <Jonathan.McNamara@redcross.org>  
Sent: Thursday, February 13, 2020 1:34 PM 
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To: Superintendent <Superintendent@henrico.k12.va.us> 
Subject: Concerns About Redistricting  
 

Use Caution: This message originated outside of Henrico County Public Schools. Use caution when opening 
attachments, clicking links or responding to requests for information. 

Good afternoon. My name is Jonathan McNamara and I am a parent of two children at Crestview Elementary School. I 
am writing you to express my deep concern over proposed plans that would move students who attend Crestview 
Elementary School away from being a feeder into Freeman High School. This move would be incredibly disruptive to our 
family. Freeman is close to our home in Charles Glen and would not require travel on 64, as would be required with a 
move to Tucker. As I am sure you can understand, young drivers on a busy stretch of interstate presents major safety 
concerns for parents.   
 
This move would also move our children away from attending high school with kids who they currently  attend after 
school programs with that build life long friendships. We are very invested in the Weinstein JCC and currently children 
from Tuckahoe ES and Crestview make up the bulk of the program. This is great because in the current state, they will 
feed into the same middle and high school. Any change to this pattern would be deeply disappointing.  
 
I appreciate you taking time to hear my concerns and I hope you can do everything you can to preserve our current 
feeder status.  

Jonathan McNamara 

 

American Red Cross  

Regional Communications Director  

804‐307‐7058 (c) 

Jonathan.mcnamara@redcross.org  

Facebook: @VARedCross  

Twitter: @VARedCross 

Instagram: @VARedCross  
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Justin M. Briggs (jmbriggs)

From: Superintendent
Sent: Thursday, February 13, 2020 4:56 PM
To: Anne W. Pruden (awpruden)
Cc: Christopher A. Sorensen (casorensen); Justin M. Briggs (jmbriggs)
Subject: RE: Crestview Elementary 

Good afternoon, Ms. Pruden, 
 
 
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
 

 
 
 
 

From: Anne W. Pruden (awpruden) <awpruden@henrico.k12.va.us>  
Sent: Thursday, February 13, 2020 1:42 PM 
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To: Superintendent <Superintendent@henrico.k12.va.us> 
Subject: Crestview Elementary  
 
Dear Dr. Cashwell,  
I am writing again in concern about the possible redistricting of Crestview Elementary to Tucker High School. I am a 
parent, resident and employee of Henrico County. By moving Crestview Elementary to Tucker High School, there will be 
a large concentration of poverty that will be shifted to Tucker. I know that Henrico County typically does an outstanding 
job of trying to ensure that schools are balanced in this manner. I am very concerned that this is an option. This would 
take a huge pocket of diverse students, both culturally and socio‐economically away from Freeman High school.  I 
continue to be greatly concerned about the safety of this route from the Crestview neighborhoods to Tucker High 
School. The drive on Broad Street and I‐64 which is what HCPS has stated as the fastest and most efficient route, has an 
increased accident rate of 350% versus our route to Freeman. The alternative route would be to drive past Freeman to 
get to Tucker. Not only are accidents on 64 much more numerous but the quantity of high‐speed accidents and serious 
injury are much higher as well. I feel that construction for growth rather than redistricting should be explored in more 
depth. Moving specialty centers to make room for children who are zoned for that school seems to be a possible option. 
Building a new high school or adding on to current high schools seems to be reasonable. Another option would be to 
move specialty centers to high schools that are under capacity such as Tucker. I have worked for this county for over 15 
years and now I am a parent of Henrico County Public School students, I know that the best decision will be made and 
not just based on the schools that have the most voices. It is important to remember that many schools do not have 
parents that are aware of how to advocate for their children due to language and cultural barriers. I hope that this is 
taken into considerations when making this very difficult decision.  I appreciate your hard work on this extremely 
difficult task.  
Thank you,  
Anne Pruden  
 
 

Anne Pruden 
LIEP Teacher 
Ridge Elementary School 
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Justin M. Briggs (jmbriggs)

From: Katie Botha <ktbotha@gmail.com>
Sent: Thursday, February 13, 2020 1:35 PM
To: schoolboard
Cc: Christopher A. Sorensen (casorensen); Justin M. Briggs (jmbriggs); John McGinty
Subject: Thank You - Westmoor Neighborhood Opposes Draft Options E 1,2,3

Use Caution: This message originated outside of Henrico County Public Schools. Use caution when opening 
attachments, clicking links or responding to requests for information. 

Dear School Board Members,  
 
I wanted to take the time to thank all of you for closely following the current redistricting process. I have 
attended several meetings since October of last year including last night’s meeting with Ms. Shea and Ms. 
Ogburn hosted by the Maybeury Elementary PTA. 
 
During the meeting both Board members spoke frankly and honestly about their belief in the importance of a 
continuous K-12 arc. As a parent of two current MES students (1st & 4th) and a resident of Westmoor 
neighborhood North of Patterson Avenue, I am writing to bring your attention to the 39 HCPS students who 
will negatively impacted by draft Options E (1,2,3) that split us from the other half of the Westmoor 
neighborhood South of Patterson for Middle School sending us to Quioccasin Middle instead of Tuckahoe 
Middle. 
 
Since approximately 50% of MES would also shift to Quioccasin, this might be OK, except that we are then 
shifted AGAIN after middle school to rejoin our Westmoor neighbors and the other 50 % of the MES 
community who attend Tuckahoe Middle at Freeman High, while our MES friends at QMS would continue to 
Godwin. 
 
My neighbors and I realize that Patterson is in many ways a natural physical boundary on a map, but our tightly 
knit neighborhood has existed for 50+ years and we share many of the same life rhythms (church, social, 
seasonal neighborhood parties, community building and carpools) despite being physically bisected by 
Patterson Ave. These social ties cannot be seen on any of Cropper’s maps but are the most important data to 
consider when subjecting half of us to a potentially damaging “double feeder split” at the critical transitions 
from Elementary to Middle and again from Middle to High school. 
 
It is notable that the number of young families on both sides of Patterson has grown in the past decade and will 
continue to grow so long as our HCPS school feeder pattern remains in the best interest of our children both 
socially and educationally. These young families often invest money in massive home improvements to homes 
built in the late sixties. The attraction of or current feeder pattern is among the top reasons these families move 
to Westmoor.  
 
Unlike other homes in our zone, Westmoor’s middle class families can afford to own their homes and many 
woman (including myself) are able to become stay at home moms once their children are school aged. Because 
of this, we are extremely active in the MES school community serving as room parents and leaders in the PTA. 
 
Hopefully, I am painting an accurate picture of Westmoor as a unique middle ground that is literally home to 
MES (on its Southside). We are not among the more wealthy families to our South/West in the River 
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Road/Gaskins corridor nor do we experience the same economic challenges of first generation immigrant 
families and other blue collar working families to our North and East that rent homes and apartments in our 
current zone (although many Westmoor residents, like me, have built multi-cultural families that blend first gen 
immigrants and college grads with partners from different social strata and cultures). Because of this, we pass 
easily among our wealthier and more disadvantaged peers and enjoy being the glue between these two parts of 
our diverse community. We are small, and maybe a little “average” but we play an important role! And we want 
to stay together as a neighborhood and as part of our larger, diverse school community. 
 
Our neighborhood’s boundaries have been corrected in all versions of draft Option D thanks to a great deal of 
advocacy efforts over the course of the past several months, but we are VERY concerned that the proponents of 
the newer E options are more concerned with pushing through the broader aims of this alternative map as 
opposed to ensuring that small, but strong communities like Westmoor remain in tact. 
 
As the daughter of longtime Godwin High School Principal, John McGinty, I have no issue or real preference in 
terms of Middle and High Schools. My desire is that Westmoor kids and families have the best shot at K-12 and 
neighborhood continuity.  
To recap, please do not separate our neighborhood and please, please either adopt draft Option D (1,2 or 3) or 
adjust the current E options to respect our neighborhood boundaries. The number of students impacted is 
small—just 39 at present—but the impact on our lives and future students of young Westmoor families would 
be huge should we would have to consider a double “feeder pattern split” impacting less than 10% of the 
current Maybeury population. 
 
Should you have any questions, please let me know. I look forward to speaking at the upcoming Public 
Comment session on Feb 27. 
 
With sincere gratitude for your service and kind attention. 

Katie McGinty Botha 
9310 Lakeland Drive 
Henrico, VA 23229 
804.467.6004 
 
 

On Feb 2, 2020, at 2:41 PM, Annette Bates <annettepbates@gmail.com> wrote: 

  
Hey!   Hoping you are doing much better and feeling more yourself again!   Here is the 
response that I received from Marcie: 
 

 
I am responding to your email about redistricting from my official account to try to keep 
everything in one place. 
 
First, I appreciate your and your neighborhood’s feedback. With so many small pockets 
around the county like your neighbor and mine, it can be a challenge to track each one 
in the context of larger communities and moves. So I particularly appreciate your 
feedback. 
 
Second, please make sure you all submit your feedback to the link 
on https://henricoschools.us/redistricting/ that goes to the committee. While the other 
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board members and I are following the process closely and meeting with our own 
communities to hear feedback, we don’t have any direct input or influence on the 
process right now. The development and editing of draft maps being done by the 
consultant and committee, not by the school board or by any input from the school 
board. 
 
I do want to hear from my communities so I have the most comprehensive 
understanding as possible going into the final decision at the end of May that the board 
is tasked with making. However, right now, it is imperative that your feedback be sent to 
the committee for consideration. 

  

Marcie 
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Justin M. Briggs (jmbriggs)

From: Superintendent
Sent: Thursday, February 13, 2020 12:57 PM
To: Shellie Archer; Superintendent; Marcie F. Shea (mfshea); Michelle F. Ogburn 

(mfogburn1); Roscoe D. Cooper, III (rdcooper); Kristi B. Kinsella (kbkinsella); Alicia S. 
Atkins (asatkins)

Cc: Christopher A. Sorensen (casorensen); Justin M. Briggs (jmbriggs)
Subject: RE: Thank you and redistricting concerns

Good afternoon, Ms. Archer, 
 
 
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
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From: Shellie Archer <shelliearcher@icloud.com>  
Sent: Thursday, February 13, 2020 9:16 AM 
To: Superintendent <Superintendent@henrico.k12.va.us>; Marcie F. Shea (mfshea) <mfshea@henrico.k12.va.us>; 
Michelle F. Ogburn (mfogburn1) <mfogburn1@henrico.k12.va.us>; Roscoe D. Cooper, III (rdcooper) 
<rdcooper@henrico.k12.va.us>; Kristi B. Kinsella (kbkinsella) <kbkinsella@henrico.k12.va.us>; Alicia S. Atkins (asatkins) 
<asatkins@henrico.k12.va.us> 
Subject: Thank you and redistricting concerns 
 

Use Caution: This message originated outside of Henrico County Public Schools. Use caution when opening 
attachments, clicking links or responding to requests for information. 

Hello, Dr. Cashwell and Henrico County School Board Members ‐  
 

Thank you all so very much for what you. I am certain you are hearing from many engaged, concerned and informed 
Henrico County residents and parents. I count myself among this group and would be regretful if I did not reach out to 
share feedback and concerns. 
 

I am incredibly appreciative of: 

 the opportunity to provide feedback and have done so through the general feedback form online 
 the time and attention we received from Marcie Shea at a meeting held at Maybeury Elementary 
 the work you all do and your thoughtful consideration of feedback from concerned Henrico County residents 

I sent the following to the committee: 

I respectfully requesting that NO further activity take place or efforts are put into option E3 until the committee has 
actually received and has time to thoroughly review feedback and comments from engaged, concerned and informed 
Henrico County residents, parents, etc. 

Option E disrupts feeder patterns in a negative way: Currently HCPS has 6 elementary schools with a direct feeder 
pattern (meaning students stay together from elementary to high school‐this is ideal for the well‐being of the students), 
25 that split once and 13 that split twice. Option E plan leaves one elementary schools without a split, 26 splitting once, 
and 18 splitting twice. Further, E3 splits every single middle school in the county except for one. 

Research on feeder patterns informs us that splitting feeder patterns cause greater disruption of existing social 
relationships and weakens student performance during transitions from one school level to the next. Simply put, option 
E3 doesn't seem logical or in the best interest or well being of our students. Their success and how we support that 
should be a priority. 

Option E does not align with the stated goal of redistricting to “reduce concentrations of poverty while balancing a 
community or neighborhood school concept”. It takes away key PTA fundraising dollars from both TMS and DSF. The 
economic disadvantage rate at Godwin is 16% vs 31% at Freeman. This option will negatively impact Freeman to take 
high home value neighborhoods and move them to Godwin, which has less economically disadvantaged students. 

Option E breaks up the diverse communities, neighborhoods, relationships currently at MES, TMS and DSF. 

Option E impacts many more middle school and high schools students than Option D. 
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Option E not only splits Maybeury but displaces students in neighborhoods in the Pemberton Road corridor, Church Run 
and Covered Bridge, to name a few. 

My feedback is 100% in support of option D3. I am very concerned about and do not support in any way option E3. 

Thank you again for your time and consideration. 

Shellie Archer 
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Justin M. Briggs (jmbriggs)

From: Superintendent
Sent: Thursday, February 13, 2020 12:54 PM
To: Joseph Douglas; Superintendent; Roscoe D. Cooper, III (rdcooper); Michelle F. Ogburn 

(mfogburn1); Marcie F. Shea (mfshea); Alicia S. Atkins (asatkins)
Cc: Christopher A. Sorensen (casorensen); Justin M. Briggs (jmbriggs)
Subject: RE: Redistricting

Good afternoon, Mr. Douglas, 
 
 
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
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From: Joseph Douglas <josephadouglas@gmail.com>  
Sent: Thursday, February 13, 2020 10:41 AM 
To: Superintendent <Superintendent@henrico.k12.va.us>; Roscoe D. Cooper, III (rdcooper) 
<rdcooper@henrico.k12.va.us>; Michelle F. Ogburn (mfogburn1) <mfogburn1@henrico.k12.va.us>; Marcie F. Shea 
(mfshea) <mfshea@henrico.k12.va.us>; Alicia S. Atkins (asatkins) <asatkins@henrico.k12.va.us> 
Subject: Redistricting 
 

Use Caution: This message originated outside of Henrico County Public Schools. Use caution when opening 
attachments, clicking links or responding to requests for information. 

To Whom It Concerns, 
 
I moved to Henrico County ten years ago largely because my wife and I wanted to grow a family and send our children to 
the County's schools. Specifically chose Old House Run for its diverse schools. We now have two children who have 
made lasting relationships with their neighborhood and school peers.  
 
We support High School options D1 and D2 because they offer the lest student disruption across for all students. We 
think, and the research shows, how beneficial it is for students to keep their peer group throughout their K‐12 
experience. Options D1 and D2 do this for the most number of students. Every effort should be made to limit 
unnecessary student movement from their current zoned schools, and county data show High School options D1 and D2 
offer the least student impact 
 
We were redistricted just 10 years ago, and this would be our 3rd high school in 10 years.  
Close to 300 students from the Pemberton Corridor were impacted last time. Students were moved from Godwin to 
Freeman and from Tuckahoe Middle to Byrd Middle (QMS). Please take into account the benefits of continuity for 
students and their communities when making this decision. This is what is best for our children. 
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Justin M. Briggs (jmbriggs)

From: Kristen Martin <khmartin80@gmail.com>
Sent: Thursday, February 13, 2020 8:22 AM
To: Justin M. Briggs (jmbriggs); Christopher A. Sorensen (casorensen); Superintendent
Cc: Marcie F. Shea (mfshea); Cassie Wolfe; Michelle F. Ogburn (mfogburn1)
Subject: Maybeury/Tuckahoe/Freeman feedback data 
Attachments: keep MES together 1.pdf

Use Caution: This message originated outside of Henrico County Public Schools. Use caution when opening 
attachments, clicking links or responding to requests for information. 

Good morning,  
Last night we had a great meeting with Micky and Marcie to discuss our support for Option D3 and opposition 
of E3.  Micky asked that I share this data with the committee, but I can’t figure out how to attach a file to the 
google form.  Would you please ensure that the committee receives this data before next week’s meeting on Feb 
19th?  Or please advise if there’s a way I can get it to them more directly.  Thanks so much for the help and for 
hearing our concerns.  
 
Kristen Martin 
(804) 698 0659 
khmartin80@gmail.com 
 
 



Keep Maybeury Together!
MES          TMS         DSF

Redistricting Feedback and Q & A session

Introducing: Marcie Shea, Tuckahoe district, and Micky 
Ogburn, Three Chopt district



How did we get here?
• Maps A, B, C became D after months of meetings and public input:

• 3 elementary and 3 secondary meetings (middle/high school)

• Public walk through November 7th and 13th to discuss Options A and B; public survey 
sent out to the county to evaluate A and B; C created after this feedback 

• Another round of elementary, secondary, and joint (both together) meetings

• Option D created in December (4 month process)

*Constant loop of feedback, data updates, public survey, and map adjustments



Option E 
• Option E created in January 
• Option E made public week of February 3rd

• Elementary, secondary, joint committee hearings held with purpose of 
adjusting options D1/2 & E1/2 into D3 and E3

COMMITTEE RECEIVED NO PUBLIC FEEDBACK ON OPTION E BEORE BEING 
TASKED WITH ADJUSTING IT (feedback was provided through Feb 3rd at those 
meetings)

*We request that the committee halt all map adjustments until satisfactory 
feedback loop to committee members has occurred.  February 19th meeting 
should be intended to review public input and updated data for D3 & E3.



Review of public feedback 

• 88 pages of feedback reveals:

• Majority positive feedback across the county when D was 
created 

• Only negative feedback from Crestview ES community due to 
move to Tucker from Freeman (100% would go to TMS and 
then Tucker in D3):
• Claims to be the only diverse feeder school to Freeman
• Splitting up from friends at TMS (TMS is split in both maps)



Freeman will remain economically and 
culturally diverse with D3

Freeman Elementary feeder schools
ES Disadvanage rate
Crestview 45%
Davis 35%
Maybeury 34%
Pemberton 17%
Pinchbeck 44%
Ridge 47%
Three Chopt 37%
Tuckahoe 6%

Jackson-Davis Pinchbeck Pemberton
48.4% White 59.5% White 77.9% White
20.9% Asian 19.8% Hispanic 9.0% Black
17.7% Black 11.7% Black 5.1% Hispanic
8.6% Hispanic 5.5% Two or more races 8.0% Other
4.4% Other 3.5% Other

Crestview Maybeury Tuckahoe
49.5% White 61.0% White 91.5% White
25.4% Hispanic 19.0% Black 8.5% Other
11.0% Black 10.0% Hispanic
9.2% Asian 5.0% Two or more races
4.9% Other 6.0% Other

Three Chopt Ridge
46.5% White 32.3% White
17.2% Hispanic 30.3% Hispanic
16.6% Asian 20.8% Black
10.8% Black 12.9% Asian
7.6% Two or more races 3.7% Other
1.3% Other

HS Current disadvantage
Freeman 31%
Godwin 16%



Option E disrupts more communities 

D3: keeps Crestview and Johnson ES all 
together and feeds into TMS, then Tucker.  
It keeps MES all together at TMS, Freeman.

E3: The MES affected area is bordered by a swamp, 
Goochland, the river, and Patterson Avenue.  Our 
community is south of Patterson. Pemberton ES is also  
split between 3 high schools and neighborhoods near 
Godwin are moved to Tucker.



Summary: Option D keeps communities 
together

• Option E breaks up the diverse communities we currently have at MES, 
TMS, and DSF.
• Option D impacts less middle school and high schools students than E.
• Option E moves students in several neighborhoods: Pemberton Rd. 

corridor, Church Rd corridor (Church Run, Bell Tower, Cross Keys, 
Morgan Run) Covered Bridge, Greenwood ES area, etc.  We are 
working these other groups that oppose Option E and establishing a 
collective petition.  MES/TMS/DSF has 783 signatures so far.
• Option E moves high income areas from Freeman to Godwin. 

Economic disadvantage rate at Godwin is 16% vs. 31% at Freeman. 
Therefore, this change does not align with the stated goal of 
redistricting to “reduce concentrations of poverty while balancing a 
community or neighborhood school concept”. 



Feeder Pattern Concerns
• Feeder pattern scoring for the committee is based on % splits with in a school, 

does not consider education life cycle of a student.  For example, a 12/88 split is 
a problem but the 50/50 Maybeury split is not discussed at all

• Issue 1:  By splitting elementary and secondary process, no one was looking at 
the big picture to identify all of these splits as an issue

• Issue 2:  School splits are known to cause disruption:
D – 8 schools are never split E - 1 school is never split
10 schools are split both elem and middle      18 split both elem and middle

• E3 splits every single middle school in the county except for 1. D saves 3 middle 
schools from being split.  For example, Pemberton elementary (300 kids) is split 
between 3 different high schools.



Freeman Utilization will go down
• Utilization rates are calculated based on an unusually large class-4,168 freshman students across HCPS:

• MES, TMS, DSF-all show downward trends in enrollment.

• DSF current capacity:  104%. D3-93%, E3-88%

• Is it necessary to move Crestview out of Freeman at all? Increased capacity may be temporary.

Grade Enrollment Trend Academic Year

12 3577 -17%

11 3655 - 14%

10 3955 - 5%

9 4168 -- 2019-20

8 4017 - 4% 2020-21

7 4036 - 3% 2021-22

6 3950 - 6% 2022-23

5 3890 - 7% 2023-24

4 3722 - 12% 2024-25

3 3703 - 13% 2025-26

2 3739 - 12% 2026-27

1 3702 - 13% 2027-28

K 3740 - 11% 2028-29
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Justin M. Briggs (jmbriggs)

From: Superintendent
Sent: Thursday, February 13, 2020 8:12 AM
To: Korinna Katharos; Superintendent; Roscoe D. Cooper, III (rdcooper); Michelle F. Ogburn 

(mfogburn1); Kristi B. Kinsella (kbkinsella); Marcie F. Shea (mfshea); Alicia S. Atkins 
(asatkins)

Cc: Christopher A. Sorensen (casorensen); Justin M. Briggs (jmbriggs)
Subject: RE: Maybeury / D3

Good morning, Ms. Katharos, 
 
 
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
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From: Korinna Katharos <kgarbis@gmail.com>  
Sent: Wednesday, February 12, 2020 9:54 PM 
To: Superintendent <Superintendent@henrico.k12.va.us>; Roscoe D. Cooper, III (rdcooper) 
<rdcooper@henrico.k12.va.us>; Michelle F. Ogburn (mfogburn1) <mfogburn1@henrico.k12.va.us>; Kristi B. Kinsella 
(kbkinsella) <kbkinsella@henrico.k12.va.us>; Marcie F. Shea (mfshea) <mfshea@henrico.k12.va.us>; Alicia S. Atkins 
(asatkins) <asatkins@henrico.k12.va.us> 
Subject: Maybeury / D3 
 

Use Caution: This message originated outside of Henrico County Public Schools. Use caution when opening 
attachments, clicking links or responding to requests for information. 

Good evening,  
 
The redistricting process has the potential to create positive changes for many students and disrupt so many others.    
 
With that in mind, I want to relay my personal plea to keep the Maybeury feeder pattern the same. My daughter 
Penelope is in Kindergarten at Maybeury.  She loves school, ballet, gymnastics, art, her little brother and our dog.  She 
also happens to be on the Autism Spectrum.  My daughter is amazing and has surpassed all expectations society set for 
her. She is bright and empathetic. She was recognized by her class for being kind based on her actions just last week.   
 
Selfishly, I want my Penelope to have the consistency which will give her the most chance of succeeding in 
school.  People who have ASD thrive with routines, which would include schedules. schools and the same people in their 
life.  I want Penelope to have the most chance at making friends, and keeping them. If the friends she's made leave her 
every few years, she will surely suffer.  It's hard enough for her to make friends as it is.   
 
Please consider children with exceptional needs and the consistency they need when making your decision regarding 
redistricting.  A plan that limits the disruption to the feeder patterns, such as D3 must be considered.   
 
Thank you for your consideration, 
Korinna Katharos 
Dorset Woods South 
7 Welwyn Place 
Henrico 23229 
 
‐‐  
Korinna G. Katharos 
703.932.9151 
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Justin M. Briggs (jmbriggs)

From: Cheryl L. Guempel (clguempel)
Sent: Wednesday, February 12, 2020 4:42 PM
To: LINSE HENLEY; Roscoe D. Cooper, III (rdcooper); Michelle F. Ogburn (mfogburn1); 

Marcie F. Shea (mfshea); Alicia S. Atkins (asatkins); Kristi B. Kinsella (kbkinsella); 
Superintendent

Cc: Christopher A. Sorensen (casorensen); Justin M. Briggs (jmbriggs)
Subject: RE: Vote for Option D3

Good afternoon, Ms. Henley, 
 
 
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
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From: LINSE HENLEY <linhenley@comcast.net>  
Sent: Wednesday, February 12, 2020 4:32 PM 
To: Roscoe D. Cooper, III (rdcooper) <rdcooper@henrico.k12.va.us>; Michelle F. Ogburn (mfogburn1) 
<mfogburn1@henrico.k12.va.us>; Marcie F. Shea (mfshea) <mfshea@henrico.k12.va.us>; Alicia S. Atkins (asatkins) 
<asatkins@henrico.k12.va.us>; Kristi B. Kinsella (kbkinsella) <kbkinsella@henrico.k12.va.us>; Superintendent 
<Superintendent@henrico.k12.va.us> 
Subject: Vote for Option D3 
 

Use Caution: This message originated outside of Henrico County Public Schools. Use caution when opening 
attachments, clicking links or responding to requests for information. 

I am very concerned about the redistricting plans in my area.  I purchased my home 14 years ago and 
have stayed in Henrico county with the intention of sending my children to the public schools I 
purchased my home in.  
Now that their pathway to middle and high school could possibly be disrupted is very disturbing.  
All of my children went to Maybeury ES.  A tight community of children and parents has been built 
there.  Children need relationships that they can count on through their middle and high school 
educations.  If you change the feeder patterns for me, you take away their stability and make an 
already confusing time, more confusing.  
 
The least disruptive option is Option D3.  This option impacts fewer middle school and high 
school students than option E3.   
 
-Option E3 disrupts feeder patterns in a negative way: Currently HCPS has 6 elementary schools with 
a direct feeder pattern (meaning students stay together from elementary to high school-this is ideal 
for the well-being of the students), 25 that split once, and 13 that split twice. The E plan would only 
leave 1 elementary school without a split, 26 splitting once, and 18 splitting twice. Further, E3 splits 
every single middle school in the county except for 1. Research on feeder patterns informs us that 
splitting feeder patterns cause greater disruption of existing social relationships and weakens student 
performance during transitions from one school level to the next.   
 
-Option E3 not only splits Maybeury but displaces students in neighborhoods in the Pemberton Road 
corridor, Church Run, and Covered Bridge to name a few.   
-Option E takes away key PTA fundraising dollars from both TMS and Freeman.  The economic 
disadvantage rate at Godwin is 16% vs. 31% at Freeman - it will negatively impact Freeman by 
moving high home value neighborhoods to Godwin, which has less economically disadvantaged 
students. This change does not align with the stated goal of redistricting to “reduce concentrations of 
poverty while balancing a community or neighborhood school concept”.  
 
Please put your personal agendas aside and do what is right for my children.  Maybeury- Tuckahoe- 
Freeman.  
 
Thank you.  
Linse Henley  
201 Arrowview Court  
23229  
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Justin M. Briggs (jmbriggs)

From: Superintendent
Sent: Wednesday, February 12, 2020 4:18 PM
To: Christine Moran
Cc: Christopher A. Sorensen (casorensen); Justin M. Briggs (jmbriggs)
Subject: RE: Henrico County Redistricting

Good afternoon, Ms. Moran, 
 
 
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
 

 
 
 
 

From: Christine Moran <cmoran0227@yahoo.com>  
Sent: Wednesday, February 12, 2020 2:55 PM 
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To: Superintendent <Superintendent@henrico.k12.va.us> 
Subject: Henrico County Redistricting 
 

Use Caution: This message originated outside of Henrico County Public Schools. Use caution when opening 
attachments, clicking links or responding to requests for information. 

Thank you for taking the time to read this email in regards to the Henrico redistricting plans. While I understand this 
process is not an easy and affects many people, there are some items to consider: 
 
1) By moving Cresview Elementary to Tucker High School, you are moving pockets and concentrations of poverty from 
Freeman to Tucker. Tucker is already a pocket of poverty with over 50% of their students eligible for reduced or free 
lunches. While currently, with the students from Crestview feeding into Freeman, Freeman is at a reduced or free lunch 
level of 30%. Freeman needs Crestviews poverty level of 51% reduced or free lunches to ensure that Freeman stays an 
economically diverse school.  
 
2) HCPS Transportation has stated that the fastest and most efficient route to get the Crestview children to Tucker is to 
have the buses travel on Broad St or I-64 during morning and afternoon rush hour traffic. This has an increased accident 
rate of 350% versus the current route taken to Freeman. This is not a safe option for our children! 
 
3) Has anyone suggested making Tucker a Specialty School. Hanover  County did this to one of their new high schools 
and the students had to apply to get in. Now, there is a huge demand for students to get into the newer specialty 
school.  If you did this, students would want to go to Tucker instead of feeling forced to go to Tucker. Why not make 
Tucker a STEM School, Engineering School, etc? Or add to the existing high schools to accommodate for growth?  
 
4) One challenge with the Crestview Community is that a large section of our neighbors either don't speak English at all or 
their English is very limited. So, you have what appears to be a small group of parents advocating for keeping Crestview 
in it's current feeder pattern of Freeman. When in fact, we are advocating for the entire community due to the language 
barrier. There have been multiple attempts to  to get this group engaged. Other areas do not have this challenge, so their 
groups are move vocal and larger in size.  
 
Thank you for your time. 
 
Christine Moran 
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Justin M. Briggs (jmbriggs)

From: Superintendent
Sent: Wednesday, February 12, 2020 4:17 PM
To: Mary-Margaret Ruppel
Cc: Christopher A. Sorensen (casorensen); Justin M. Briggs (jmbriggs)
Subject: RE: Redistricting SAFETY

Good afternoon, Ms. Ruppel, 
 
 
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
 

 
 
 
 

From: Mary‐Margaret Ruppel <ruppelmm@gmail.com>  
Sent: Wednesday, February 12, 2020 4:08 PM 
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To: Superintendent <Superintendent@henrico.k12.va.us> 
Subject: Redistricting SAFETY 
 

Use Caution: This message originated outside of Henrico County Public Schools. Use caution when opening 
attachments, clicking links or responding to requests for information. 

Hello Dr. Cashwell,  
 
I am writing this letter to express my concern over the potential move of the Crestview Community from our currently 
assigned high school (Freeman) to Tucker High School.  Although my children are young, the oldest being a kindergartner 
at Crestview Elementary, this potential change is of great concern to my family. 
 
The route from our neighborhood to Freeman High School is simple.  No major roadways are crossed.  The speed limit is 
significantly lower, 45 MPH on Three Chopt Road versus 65 MPH on I‐64 ‐‐which is the fastest route from our community 
to Tucker High School (also the most efficient route, according to HCPS transportation).  NO merging is required to get to 
Freeman, where as the drive to Tucker requires MULTIPLE merges during RUSH HOUR traffic‐‐merging not only onto the 
interstate, but also merging while on Parham Road to turn into the high school.   
 
It concerns me greatly to think of our children, novice drivers, negotiating the early morning traffic on I‐64 every single 
day‐‐and after school (during rush hour again if the children participate in after school sports/activities).  It's a drive that 
I myself would not want to endure each day.  The alternative route (listed as the second fastest by HCPS transportation) 
uses Broad Street to get to Parham.  Another white‐knuckle drive during the most rushed time(s) of the day.  These 
routes have an accident rate of 350% compared to our current route to Freeman.   The numbers speak for 
themselves.  It cannot be denied that accidents occurring on the interstate are more severe (with more significant 
injuries) due to the high rate of speed than accidents along Three Chopt Road (fender benders are more likely). 
 
I feel strongly for many reasons that our community should remain at Freeman High School, but SAFETY, should be a 
priority for everyone.   
 
Thank you very much for considering my feedback as you move toward making a decision about redistricting. 
 
Mary‐Margaret Buthe 
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Justin M. Briggs (jmbriggs)

From: Rachel Landsee <rachel.landsee2@gmail.com>
Sent: Wednesday, February 12, 2020 3:07 PM
To: Superintendent
Cc: Christopher A. Sorensen (casorensen); Justin M. Briggs (jmbriggs)
Subject: Re: HCPS Redistricting Process Concerns

Use Caution: This message originated outside of Henrico County Public Schools. Use caution when opening 
attachments, clicking links or responding to requests for information. 

Ms. Guempel, 
 
With all due respect, the majority of the comments that I sent are regarding process, which the committee has 
no control over. That is why I sent the comments to the Superintendent instead. I want to be clear on that point. 
I did issue point #1 to the committee last week.  
 
Thank you,  
Rachel Landsee 
 
On Wed, Feb 12, 2020 at 2:47 PM Superintendent <Superintendent@henrico.k12.va.us> wrote: 

Good afternoon, Ms. Landsee, 

  

Thank you for taking the time to share your concerns. I am responding on behalf of Dr. Cashwell. 

  

If you haven’t done so, it is essential that the points noted in your e-mail be shared with the committee. This 
can be done online. The best way to communicate your concerns is through our 
website:  https://henricoschools.us/redistricting/. All comments received are provided to the committee to 
review.  All information and progress of the committee are posted on our website as well. 

  

Redistricting is a challenging process for school systems and the communities they serve. 

  

The School Board will not make any final decisions regarding redistricting until the spring of 2020. A lot can 
happen for the committee as they work to make recommendations to the School Board. 
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Your input is important in the process. Please do not fail to communicate to the committee charged with this 
task. 

  

I have copied Chris Sorensen, Chief of Finance, and Justin Briggs, Education Specialist for Planning. Both are 
monitoring the work of the committee. 

  

Again, I appreciate you sharing your concerns, 

  

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
Sent: Wednesday, February 12, 2020 2:40 PM 
To: Superintendent <Superintendent@henrico.k12.va.us> 
Subject: HCPS Redistricting Process Concerns 
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Use Caution: This message originated outside of Henrico County Public Schools. Use caution when opening 
attachments, clicking links or responding to requests for information. 

Dear Dr. Cashwell,   

  

I hope this note finds you well. I am writing to express concerns about the fairness and transparency of 
the redistricting process. Without a fair and transparent process, we risk unfair, haphazard, and 
arbitrary and capricious decision-making. Please address the following: 

  

1. Why doesn't the committee explain their reasoning on the website for the decisions they make on the 
options, including how each option serves each of the redistricting principles and why they deleted 
previous options for consideration? Without explaining their analysis and reasoning, the public is in a 
position to guess their mindset. Their lack of explanation also appears to lead to a reactionary process, 
where committee members appear to be swayed by how many comments are received and how many 
people show up to various functions instead of a comprehensive view of the issues at hand. All of this 
leads to inappropriate and inefficient debate. We need to know why certain areas are considered for 
redistricting, and why others are not, and why some areas that were once considered for redistricting 
are no longer considered. The analysis, reasons, and decisions must be transparent. Please suspend 
further decision-making until the committee explains all of their decisions to date, on the website, to 
allow for proper debate. 

  

2. Please have Cropper explain in words the changes to all of the maps on the website. The maps are 
terrible and antiquated, even the interactive maps. It takes too much time and effort to decipher them. I 
have not spoken with one person who has not struggled to understand the maps. This alone cuts much 
of the public out of the debate. Everything on the website needs to make the public understanding 
greater and easier. Cropper needs to explain the changes in each of the maps from previous versions, 
and which schools are considered within each zone. Then the committee needs to explain why. Every 
change, and every reason, needs to be much clearer, and all of it needs to be prominently displayed on 
the website.  

  

3. Likewise, please have Cropper organize all of the data and comments being considered into a 
system that is not hidden in the calendar. It is fine to have those hyperlinks, but they must also have 
any data on demographics pulled out separately on the website and organized, and all comments 
organized by redistricting concern, not just by date submitted, which appears to be the current method 
of organization. The website is currently Cropper-friendly, and not user friendly. Cropper likewise needs 
to explain the meaning behind the data on their excel spreadsheets, and any other number cruching 
that they've done. They need to explain, for example, what factors went into their Economic 
Disadvantage analysis and the equations they used. This lack of ready information on the website 
hugely stifles debate. Cropper must assume that people have 30 minutes to get up to date on the 
information, and not 5 hours (which is what it has taken me, incidentally, to get only 1/3 of the way 
through). 

  

4. Many people from the Pemberton corridor appear to be relying on Mr. Cropper's statement that areas 
redistricted nine years ago would not be considered in this redistricting analysis. Yet that is not one of 
the HCPS redistricting principles. Because Mr. Cropper speaks with authority in this debate as a leader 
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of at least part of the project, HCPS must come out and say that it either affirms his comments or 
disaffirms them. Because Mr. Cropper is in a position of authority and people rely on his statements, 
this is the type of situation that can unfairly bias committees and voting school board members, risking 
a sympathetic decision that is not in concert with the redistricting principles.  

  

5. What is the process to identify and remedy conflicts of interest? My understanding is that there is at 
least one voting member of the school board who has children in an elementary school that stands to 
be affected by the redistricting decision, and that this voting member represents a different part of the 
school district with another elementary school that also stands to be affected by the redistricting 
decision, such that these two elementary schools are in direct opposition under the current options. 
That member is in an unfair position personally and professionally, and cannot be unbiased as that 
member has an obvious personal stake in the process and outcome. My understanding is that there are 
only 5 voting members to this process, so it is not enough to say that other votes may overcome that 
person's bias. There may be others in this position as well. How will these conflicts of interest be 
discerned and dealt with? 

  

6. My husband and I have looked at the maps extensively and feel there is no good option for 
redistricting to Tucker High School. We are both former army officers with six deployments to combat 
zones between us. Accordingly, we have spent a lot of time with maps and logistics in difficult and time-
sensitive situations. The issue here is that the high schools in the west end are so close together that 
there is no good redistricting option. Redistricting will force people to travel further than their closest 
high school which is absolutely unfair to anyone affected by that decision. Transportation in the county 
is a serious issue. Not that the busses can't handle it, but that it is a huge event to families that they will 
lose time with each other traveling to a school that is farther away from their currently districted school. 
This is not an issue for the committee to lightly wave off in a "greatest good for the most people" 
analysis. Is there any thought to building a new high school anywhere else that alleviates the 
geographic concentration of current high schools? If not, why not? Please don't just say money and 
resources. We need creative solutions for Henrico County which, by all measures, continues to grow in 
expected and unexpected places.  

  

7.  Related to the above point, why are we not waiting on the current 2020 census data to properly 
inform this decision? We will still need to forecast population growth and density even with the 2020 
data, yet we appear to insist on jamming this process through with data that is 10 years old and 
projecting it forward. Why are we making decisions that will affect people's daily lives with old data? We 
should wait for updated data so we can have a better analsysis all around. The forecasted construction 
at the schools can still go on without an immediate redistricting decision. The population isn't going 
anywhere.  

  

8. There was an understanding that race cannot be considered in this redistricting decision by at least 
one voting school board representative, who cited the US Supreme Court decision Parents Involved in 
Community Schools v. Seattle School Dist. No. 1 as authority. I read the opinion and came to a 
completely different conclusion. I communicated with the school board member who very respectfully 
stated that my analysis would be passed onto that member's colleagues. I am unsure, however, what 
that means, and am concerned about how many people might hold a similar view who are guiding this 
process. This issue is crucially important because it bears directly on the debate of redistricting and 
how the HCPS's greater regulations and goals for diversity are incorporated into the process, even if 
affecting a minority of the population, which is exactly the point of policy on this issue. The issue came 
up during a conversation about a consequence of one of the redistricting options which would cause a 
conglomerate of diversity at Tucker High School, simultaneously creating a situation in which Tucker 
would be surrounded by four more affluent high schools that would be significantly less diverse, 
including significantly less racially diverse. This result would be in contravention to many of our beliefs 
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of how diversity should serve the greatest good in our community. It is also in contravention to the 
HCPS policy regarding diversity and inclusivity, and the mission and vision of the HCPS Office of 
Equity, Diversity and Opportunities. But the conversation on this matter was ended quickly because the 
school board representative relayed that race could not be considered in the decision-making process, 
specifically meaning that the member could not consider the consequence of some schools becoming 
less racially diverse and more affluent as a possible result of the decision. From my point of view, these 
are the types of things that absolutely must be considered when redistricting, and nothing that I see in 
the Parents Involved decision dissuades that. I respectfully request that this point be addressed with 
clear and open guidance to the community, particularly with respect to what can and should be 
considered, particularly in light of other HCPS policy, regulation, and goals on the matter. 

  

Thank you for your continued energy and leadership to this community.  

  

I remain, 

  

Very truly yours, 

  

  

  

Rachel Landsee 



39

Justin M. Briggs (jmbriggs)

From: Superintendent
Sent: Wednesday, February 12, 2020 2:49 PM
To: Chris Giacchi; Superintendent; Marcie F. Shea (mfshea)
Cc: Christopher A. Sorensen (casorensen); Justin M. Briggs (jmbriggs)
Subject: RE: Feedback on Henrico Redistricting

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
 

 
 
 
 

From: Chris Giacchi <christian.giacchi@capitalone.com>  
Sent: Wednesday, February 12, 2020 12:56 PM 
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To: Superintendent <Superintendent@henrico.k12.va.us>; Marcie F. Shea (mfshea) <mfshea@henrico.k12.va.us> 
Subject: Feedback on Henrico Redistricting 
 

Use Caution: This message originated outside of Henrico County Public Schools. Use caution when opening 
attachments, clicking links or responding to requests for information. 

Good afternoon,  
 
I would like to express my opposition to options E1/E2 and full support of options D1/D2. Students bond with their 
classmates at the formative elementary school years and it would not be in the best interest of students to have them 
split up at the middle and high school levels. Research shows us that splitting feeder patterns causes greater disruption 
of existing social relationships and weakens student performance during transitions from one school level to the next. 
Also, plans E1/E2 do not accomplish the county's goal of diversifying the economic makeup of the student body ‐ in fact 
it will serve to diminish economic diversity at both Quioccasin and Godwin. The economic disadvantage rate at Godwin 
is 16% vs. 31% at Freeman, so it will negatively impact Freeman to take high home value neighborhoods and move them 
to Godwin, which has less economically disadvantaged students. Additionally, this change does not align with the stated 
goal of redistricting to "reduce concentrations of poverty while balancing a community or neighborhood school 
concept". 
 
I know this is a difficult decision with many opinions. Thank you for your careful consideration of my feedback.  
 
Chris Giacchi 
 
 
‐‐  

Chris Giacchi 

HR Consulting  

804.350.2183 (cell) 

Christian.giacchi@capitalone.com 

 

  

 

 
 
The information contained in this e‐mail is confidential and/or proprietary to Capital One and/or its affiliates and may 
only be used solely in performance of work or services for Capital One. The information transmitted herewith is 
intended only for use by the individual or entity to which it is addressed. If the reader of this message is not the 
intended recipient, you are hereby notified that any review, retransmission, dissemination, distribution, copying or 
other use of, or taking of any action in reliance upon this information is strictly prohibited. If you have received this 
communication in error, please contact the sender and delete the material from your computer. 
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Justin M. Briggs (jmbriggs)

From: Superintendent
Sent: Wednesday, February 12, 2020 11:08 AM
To: G A Mceachron; Superintendent; Roscoe D. Cooper, III (rdcooper); Michelle F. Ogburn 

(mfogburn1); Kristi B. Kinsella (kbkinsella); Marcie F. Shea (mfshea); Alicia S. Atkins 
(asatkins)

Cc: Christopher A. Sorensen (casorensen); Justin M. Briggs (jmbriggs)
Subject: RE: Continuity with Freeman

Good morning, 
 
 
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
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From: G A Mceachron <gamcea@verizon.net>  
Sent: Wednesday, February 12, 2020 10:58 AM 
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
Cc: gamcea@verizon.net 
Subject: Continuity with Freeman 
 

Use Caution: This message originated outside of Henrico County Public Schools. Use caution when opening 
attachments, clicking links or responding to requests for information. 

Dear Dr. Cashwell, Chair Cooper, Vice Chair Ogburn, Ms. Kinsella, Ms. Shea, and Ms. Atkins, 
 
I am writing to support Plans D1 or D2 which has limited disruption for students by ensuring that students along the 
Pemberton corridor can attend Freeman High School.  I think that it is important for community cohesion and that a cohort 
of friends provides a foundation of support to students who may otherwise feel increased alienation based on the 
continuous changing of classes at the high school level.  The bonds made in the formative years and during middle school 
are significant for developing strong self-esteem and a sense of belonging.   
 
I have lived in Candlewood since 1981 where my children attended Henrico County schools--Jackson Davis, Quioccasin 
Middle School and Godwin High School.  I have appreciated the long-lasting friendships they made which continue to this 
day.  In addition, when I was young, I experienced first-hand the disruption of students as a result of 
redistricting.  Graduates of my middle school were sent to two different high schools and we always regretted the loss of 
good friends, even though we tried to maintain those friendships as high school rivals.  The friendships were never the 
same and at a recent high school reunion including the middle school friends, we lamented this fact once again. 
 
Thank you for considering this personal request throughout your deliberations. 
 
Sincerely, 
Dr. Gail McEachron 
Professor Emerita 
School of Education 
The College of William and Mary  
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Justin M. Briggs (jmbriggs)

From: Superintendent
Sent: Wednesday, February 12, 2020 10:17 AM
To: Trisha Kelly
Cc: Christopher A. Sorensen (casorensen); Justin M. Briggs (jmbriggs)
Subject: RE: Support map E3 Redistricting

Good morning, Ms. Kelly, 
 
 
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
 

 
 
 
 

From: Trisha Kelly <trisha.kelly@yahoo.com>  
Sent: Tuesday, February 11, 2020 8:09 PM 
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To: Superintendent <Superintendent@henrico.k12.va.us> 
Subject: Support map E3 Redistricting 
 

Use Caution: This message originated outside of Henrico County Public Schools. Use caution when opening 
attachments, clicking links or responding to requests for information. 

I appreciate all your time and effort in our Henrico redistricting as I know this has not 
been an easy process for anyone and I recognize the passion we all have for the various 
options, which demonstrates our love for our current communities, schools, and feeder 
patterns. I am writing to say I believe the committee should fully embrace option E3 which 
first and foremost ensures the safety of our children who would be rezoned from Freeman 
to Tucker. This adds an additional 2 miles of interstate and/or congested and high traffic 
areas for buses and our young student drivers. It seems an unnecessary risk when there 
is an option for a closer and safer path to Freeman High School for these students. 
Secondly as one of your objectives states this map reduces concentrations of poverty 
since Crestview is currently has a lower concentration of poverty similar to what is seen at 
Tucker, other mapping options would concentrate wealth at Freeman which would lose its 
diversity at the same time. I encourage you to visit Crestview Elementary to see the 
unique diversity and thriving community that the school has and compare that to the other 
Elementary schools that are currently feeding into Freeman High School. Crestview is 
very similar to Tucker so aligning to Tucker will not impact Tucker’s diversity or 
concentration of poverty, but removing Crestview from Freeman will irrevocably alter the 
student body and change how our young adults interact with people of all different 
backgrounds and socioeconomic circumstances. Thirdly this option would have Crestview 
being quartered off from the rest of the Tucker zone. Currently our neighborhood aligns 
and overlaps greatly with Tuckahoe Middle School and feeds into Freeman. This change 
would not only remove us from our other Freeman community but place us far away from 
the Tucker community essentially isolating us within the new zone. Another key objective 
of rezoning would be satisfied with the E3 option in that it efficiently uses all available 
space and plan for future county growth. E3 makes the most sense to relieve capacity at 
Tuckahoe Middle School and Freeman and in addition allows capacity at Tucker and 
Godwin (the D options would put Godwin at capacity setting us up for another re-districting 
in a few short years). The E3 option disrupts the fewest students and makes room for 
growth at all schools. I ask that you please take all these factors into consideration in 
making your determination. 

On a separate note I would encourage the committee to not present future mapping 
option, although I know it has been stated that this is a possibility. For those of us in 
Crestview district we have been subject to re-zoning since the first maps were released. 
Every new map adjustment brings a new neighborhood or school into consideration and 
flares the sensibilities of even more county residents. Every time a new map comes out 
our neighborhood supporters of keeping Crestview at Freeman grow ever more confused 
and frustrated. I recognize that feedback from residents is being considered as new maps 
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are being developed, but the frustration, confusion, and impatience grow exponentially 
with each new mapping. And unfortunately, I have seen neighbors and fellow citizens 
begin to be unkind and deliberate in their attacks and I fear that instead of strengthening 
the Henrico community this process is beginning to fracture and weaken it. 

  

Thank you for your time and consideration in reading my letter. 

Thanks, 
Trisha Kelly 
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Justin M. Briggs (jmbriggs)

From: Kristi B. Kinsella (kbkinsella)
Sent: Wednesday, February 12, 2020 6:48 AM
To: Nate Lash; schoolboard; Superintendent; Christopher A. Sorensen (casorensen); Justin 

M. Briggs (jmbriggs)
Subject: RE: redistricting concerns

Good morning, Mr. Lash. Thank you for documenting and sending your thoughts about increasing existing capacity, 
exploring the idea of increasing or expanding specialty programs, and redistricting concerns related to the Crestview 
area to me. I've included the School Board, Cherri Guempel, Policy and Constituency Specialist, Chris Sorensen, Chief 
Financial Officer, and Justin Briggs, Planning Specialist, on this email. Mr. Sorensen and Mr. Briggs are responsible for 
directly monitoring the work of the redistricting committee.  
 
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
 
Public Information Session/Gallery Walk (Public views enlargements of the most recent options and has the 
opportunity to share feedback and ask questions of committee members.) 
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
 
I hope your family feels better soon. I look forward to your continued engagement in the process. 
 
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
 

From: Nate Lash <nwlash4@gmail.com>  
Sent: Tuesday, February 11, 2020 12:42 PM 
To: Kristi B. Kinsella (kbkinsella) <kbkinsella@henrico.k12.va.us> 
Subject:  
 

Use Caution: This message originated outside of Henrico County Public Schools. Use caution when opening 
attachments, clicking links or responding to requests for information. 

Kristi, 
 
Good Afternoon, 
 
I hope this email finds you better than me.  We have had the flu and strep throat running through my house. Yuck! 
 
Anyway, I hate to bother you but I once again am reaching out to you for some comments and/or a few questions. 
 
This whole process is getting completely out of hand across the county.  It was brought to my attention that now 
Maybuery and Tuckahoe Elementary are forming a movement together to align them not only against Crestview area 
but also to influence the board.  I am letting you know of that ahead of time because you are about to be 
inundated.  Crestview's PTA is run by the librarian who doesn't want to be involved due to her job and TES and 
Maybuery have over 800+ members.  Not fair by any means but I thought you should know.   
 
I have not told my family this but I thought I would mention it to you.  I actually had someone approach me at Starbucks 
and ask me if I was the one advocating for Crestview to stay at Freeman.  Which I acknowledged.  The lady them told me 
"well come this spring I will put your house on the market when they rezone this area"!  I was blown away and 
immediately let her know I chucked her card in the trash.  UNBELIEVELABLE!  I never thought that this is what it would 
become community vs community.  It is quite sad and disheartening :( 
 
I also sent an email asking questions about exploring alternatives to redistricting last week and no one ever 
responded?  I suppose they are being read but probably being overshadowed by the shear volume.   And probably going 
to get worse from this point moving forward. 
 
Thanks for being our delegate and school board member.  We should all be focused on improvements to our schools 
rather than our school zones tearing friendships apart.   I would say this process has already done damage and for the 
sake of our county it has to stop or go into a different path. 
 
Thank you Kristi and I wish you all the best over the next few months. 
 
Nathan Lash  
804‐218‐1707 
 
Email from 2/6/2020 
 
Good Afternoon, 
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Thank you all for all the hard work, long hours and hearing the concerns and voices of Henrico county residents.  I have 
a few comments/questions which I would like to mention to the board. 
 
I was at the secondary committee meeting last night and Mr. Cropper mentioned the new elementary school and the 
expansion of a middle school.  Maybe I missed something but why has there been no talk of expanding a high school in 
the county?  Has that been looked at or evaluated how that would impact the entire county redistricting 
process?  Schools like Glen Allen ( high school )have so much property/land they could utilize for expansion, after all that 
is where much of the county's proposed growth is planned.  I was at that school the other day for a sporting event and 
was amazed at the property and facilities, that school could be expanded very easily.  Would that solve most of the 
current & potential future issues of far west end growth for high schools?  Many families are concerned most about 
middle and high school because of young drivers, teammates, relationships, and studies.   
 
During the last school board meeting, I mentioned exploring the idea of increasing or expanding specialty programs.  Has 
this or will this ever be looked into further?  An example I see would be designing a computer/cyber‐security program or 
a curriculum focused directly toward business & management.  This will attract students to those campuses that don't 
have capacity issues and/or possible help those with overcrowding.  I have heard from so many parents of children that 
get turned away from specialty schools because of just a few coveted available spots.  I have seen the impact on 
those students and the utter feeling of defeat and rejection.  This has to be just disheartening to be a parent of one of 
these kids.  Expanding this platform could strengthen the county's educational system and  potentially solve redistricting 
issues for middle and high schools.  I am not sure I was ready to jump into a focused field of study in middle and high 
school, but todays youth seems to be more eager and focused than our generation.   HCPS has done a tremendous job 
and duty for all county residents, let's explore more opportunities which in return could bring more specialized 
people/jobs to our region.   
 
Let's work with the community and find alternatives to redistricting  rather than rush into severing friends, communities, 
relationships and families.  I love my county and my schools, that is why I choose this system for my family.  We are in 
the public school system by choice.  I want my children to be educated with all socio economic classes, different cultural 
backgrounds, hearing different languages and exposure to the vast different religions of this county's residents.  This 
exposure will better prepare my children for the world ahead of them, both socially and economically. That I truly 
believe.   
 
The current redistricting process could just be a temporary band‐aid.  For my area and surrounding areas, numbers show 
the trend of students are decreasing. Don't we want to take our time and find a longer term solution for the 
county rather than move thousands of children against their will.        
 
Thank you for your time. 
 
Nathan Lash  
8042181707 
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Justin M. Briggs (jmbriggs)

From: Trisha Kelly <trisha.kelly@yahoo.com>
Sent: Tuesday, February 11, 2020 8:15 PM
To: Christopher A. Sorensen (casorensen); Matthew Cropper; Justin M. Briggs (jmbriggs)
Subject: Support E3 in Henrico Redistricting

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
Godwin (the D options would put Godwin at capacity setting us up for another redistricting 
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
options, although I know it has been stated that this is a possibility. For those of us in 
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
Sent: Tuesday, February 11, 2020 4:43 PM
To: Melinda Winterhalter
Cc: Christopher A. Sorensen (casorensen); Justin M. Briggs (jmbriggs)
Subject: RE: Redistricting is tearing apart the county!

Good afternoon, Ms. Winterhalter, 
 
 
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
 

 
 
 
 

From: Melinda Winterhalter <melinsean@verizon.net>  
Sent: Tuesday, February 11, 2020 3:16 PM 
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To: Superintendent <Superintendent@henrico.k12.va.us> 
Subject: Redistricting is tearing apart the county! 
 

Use Caution: This message originated outside of Henrico County Public Schools. Use caution when opening 
attachments, clicking links or responding to requests for information. 

 

Dear Superintendent Cashwell,  
 
I received this text today. This is a prime example of how this redistricting is tearing apart the county 
and our communities.  The Tuckahoe Elementary PTA President sent  this out to Tuckahoe 
Elementary Parents advocating for Maybeury to remain at TMS and Freeman, therefore opposing 
Crestview to stay at Freeman.  It is heartbreaking to see how a school that is not touched in this process 
align with one school over another.  The reason for some of this is probably because one of Maybeury's 
positions is that TMS and DSF PTA funding will decrease! Is this for real? This is not a redistricting 
guideline.  Yes, I suppose it is a fact that funding would be reduced because Crestview residents are 
more diverse in culture and household ecomomics. This so upsetting to see! 
 
Both Maybeury and TES PTA's probably have over 600 members and Maybeury has it's PTA advocating 
a response for all their members to copy and repeat. Crestview only has 175 PTA members due to our 
diversity, and Crestview's PTA is not getting involved like that, and that is why the Crestview Area 
Coalition formed- a true grass roots, community coalition. Again, this shows how much Freeman needs 
Crestview and it shows how this redistricting is literally tearing apart the Henrico County Community! 
You see it at the committee meetings (with the observers and the committee members), you see it on 
Redistricting Facebook Pages and now you are seeing it in emails sent out by PTA Presidents of 
schools that should be simply saying prayers of thanks,  that their kids are not affected... they should not 
be choosing who they'd rather associate with and who would bring more $ into their middle school and 
high school.  
 
Please, come to another solution for our schools! Think LONG TERM so we don't have to go through 
this NOW or in the FUTURE! 
Think about moving specialty centers out of the high schools that are at capacity. Don't choose these 
centers being at these high schools over the community that chose to live in these areas. This is simply 
not fair!   
 
Please think about how this is affecting our county, your county! OUR LIVES! 
 
Respectfully, 
Melinda Winterhalter 
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Sent from my iPhone 



59

Justin M. Briggs (jmbriggs)

From: Cheryl L. Guempel (clguempel)
Sent: Tuesday, February 11, 2020 4:41 PM
To: Andrew LeVasseur
Cc: Christopher A. Sorensen (casorensen); Justin M. Briggs (jmbriggs)
Subject: RE: E3 Meets the redistricting criteria, Best for most students county wide!

Good afternoon, Mr. LeVasseur, 
 
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
 

 
 
 
 

From: Andrew LeVasseur <levasseur.andrew@gmail.com>  
Sent: Tuesday, February 11, 2020 4:09 PM 
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To: Superintendent <Superintendent@henrico.k12.va.us> 
Subject: E3 Meets the redistricting criteria, Best for most students county wide! 
 

Use Caution: This message originated outside of Henrico County Public Schools. Use caution when opening 
attachments, clicking links or responding to requests for information. 

Dear Superintendent, Dr. Amy E. Cashwell, 
 
As a parent of 5th and 7th grade students at Crestview Elementary and Tuckahoe Middle School, I am writing to express 
my support of redistricting option E3.    

E3 is the option that addresses the most criteria for evaluation and that does the least harm to the community.    

I appreciate that the new maps place our community at a political disadvantage among the vocal minority, but if we are 
evaluating based on the criteria and what is best for the most students county wide, this is the best option presented.   

I support Option E3 based on the following facts:  

 Appears to meet all goals of redistricting guidelines/criteria.Impacts the least amount of students, county wide! 
 Better balances utilization and socioeconomic diversity across all schools. 
 Fulfills the goal of filling the newly built Tucker HS.Decreases concentration of poverty at Tucker.  
 Does a better job with feeder patterns and continuity of child's K‐12 progress county‐wide.Relives capacity at 

Freeman and TMS !  Relieving capacity at Freeman makes room for Regency development. (Option D puts TMS 
and Godwin at 99% capacity, not acceptable).  

Thank you for your consideration.  I trust that you will do what is best for all the students county wide.  Not what is 
politically expedient based on a vocal minority.   
 
Thank you, 
Andrew LeVasseur 
206‐849‐6103 
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Justin M. Briggs (jmbriggs)

From: Andrew LeVasseur <levasseur.andrew@gmail.com>
Sent: Tuesday, February 11, 2020 4:32 PM
To: Matthew Cropper; Christopher A. Sorensen (casorensen); Justin M. Briggs (jmbriggs)
Subject: E3 Meets the redistricting criteria, Best for the most students county wide!

Use Caution: This message originated outside of Henrico County Public Schools. Use caution when opening 
attachments, clicking links or responding to requests for information. 

Hello,  
 
As a parent of 5th and 7th grade students at Crestview Elementary and Tuckahoe Middle School, I am writing 
to express my support for redistricting option E3.    

E3 is the option that addresses the most criteria for evaluation and that does the least harm to the community.    

I appreciate that the new maps place our community at a political disadvantage among the vocal minority, but if 
we are evaluating based on the criteria and what is best for the most students county wide, this is the best option 
presented.   

I support Option E3 based on the following facts: 

 Appears to meet all goals of redistricting guidelines/criteria.Impacts the least amount of students, county 
wide! 

 Better balances utilization and socioeconomic diversity across all schools. 
 Fulfills the goal of filling the newly built Tucker HS. 
 Decreases concentration of poverty at Tucker.  
 Does a better job with feeder patterns and continuity of child's K-12 progress county-wide. 
 Relives capacity at Freeman and TMS.  Relieving capacity at Freeman makes room for Regency 

development. (Option D puts TMS and Godwin at 99% capacity, not acceptable).  

Thank you for your consideration.  I trust that you will do what is best for all the students county wide.  Not 
what is politically expedient based on a vocal minority.   
 
Thank you, 
Andrew LeVasseur 
206-849-6103 
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Justin M. Briggs (jmbriggs)

From: Geri Isenberg <gsunflwr2000@bellsouth.net>
Sent: Tuesday, February 11, 2020 1:45 PM
To: Justin M. Briggs (jmbriggs)
Subject: Concerns for the Redistricting

Use Caution: This message originated outside of Henrico County Public Schools. Use caution when opening 
attachments, clicking links or responding to requests for information. 

Dear Whom It May Concern,                                          February 11, 2020 

I am writing to you in regards to the mess that this rezoning/redistricting is causing in 
Henrico County Public Schools and neighborhoods. I understand what you all are 
trying to do but you are pulling a community apart. You are making it a THEM vs. US 
and it is getting out of hand. We are a community, we are neighbors, we are friends 
and so are OUR children! I live in Charles Glen and I am the past PTA President at 
Crestview Elementary School. I was the President there for the LAST 4 years. I have 
never witnessed such slander, dismay and hurtful messages towards our school and 
our community. 

Words and actions are what is making this community turn against each other. You 
have set goals to make redistricting a priority in Henrico County however, you have 
ripped neighborhoods apart in the meantime. As a previous PTA President, we worked 
closely with our neighborhood schools, we sought out volunteers from Tuckahoe 
Middle School and Freeman High School due to the connections and the proximity of 
these schools. It is important to our students to continue to show the connection they 
have with their community along with student’s relationships to peers, teachers, 
coaches and other school personnel. 

Your disruption within our community is very sad. I have heard of many communities 
and PTA’s within the community starting up underground committees to push 
Crestview out of Freeman. What does this get you? Is this really what you want in 
Henrico County? I am appalled that this is allowed to go on and I cannot believe that 
we wouldn’t try to use the least restrictive and least disruptive method to our 
community and our children. It is very sad what you are doing to Henrico County Public 
Schools and the district. I have a lot of friends, neighbors and families that are 
disappointed in the way this is being handled. We have PTA’s within our community 
that are joining up together with other PTA’s so that they can get the word out against 
Crestview Elementary. They are trying to convince the community that these PTA’s 
need to stick together and it is causing havoc all over Henrico County. I don’t 
understand what Cropper and his team along with the Henrico County Public School 
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Board is doing to this community. It’s a disgrace that this is happening and it continues 
to happen. I think you all need to reevaluate what your process is and what is your goal 
is. We need to come up with a better solution in this process and maybe you need to 
rearrange the whole Tucker situation and make it more of a specialty center instead of 
an undesired school. 

I would like to discuss this further with you as this is near and dear to my heart along 
with most of the Crestview families and community. 

Thank you for listening to me and I do hope we can make this a smoother transition 
rather than a THEM vs US because that is what is happening at the moment. 

  

Sincerely, 

  

Geri Isenberg 
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Justin M. Briggs (jmbriggs)

From: matthew.j.alligood@dominionenergy.com
Sent: Monday, February 10, 2020 2:39 PM
To: Marcie F. Shea (mfshea); Justin M. Briggs (jmbriggs); Michelle F. Ogburn (mfogburn1); 

pob@patobannon.com; Info@tommybranin.com; Superintendent
Subject: Henrico County Redistricting concerns

Importance: High

Use Caution: This message originated outside of Henrico County Public Schools. Use caution when opening 
attachments, clicking links or responding to requests for information. 

Good Afternoon,  
 
After dissecting much information over the last few months, I am taking the time today to continue my previous efforts 
of reaching out to you all in regards to the proposed Henrico County Public School redistricting.  
 
Being a resident of the Pinedale Farms neighborhood, it continues to concern my family and so many others around us 
that there are still options that would disrupt the strong and close community that we have worked hard to establish 
along the Pemberton Road corridor. Everyone involved will agree that this has been a long, exhausting process of 
reviewing plan after plan and attending countless numbers of meetings with no rhyme or reason as to why certain plans 
are being proposed knowing that thousands of kids will have their lives and stability disrupted yet again, for the 2nd 
time in 10 years.…. HCPS has turned a blind eye to what a large majority of families are providing feedback on and 
instead, they are leaning on a 3rd party vendor (Cropper) from another state to make unpopular decisions for them.  
 
So, I would like to bring this topic up to everyone on this email: It seems to me that you are putting the cart before the 
horse on this one. When I receive emails from our Superintendent Amy Cashwell, and I look on the HCPS website, it is 
clear that you are planning to build several new schools in the near future. While we may see that this is necessary due 
to school populations growing, I ask this question of you all‐ Why would you desire to redistrict everyone now, and 
then build these new schools over the next 5 years, KNOWING that you will have to redistrict everyone and further 
disrupt families again for what will be the 3rd time in 15 years?!  Would it not be significantly more sensible, cost‐
saving, and less impactful  to build these new schools, and then take a step back and analyze if things need to move 
around at that point?  
 
In addition, here’s another question on everyone’s minds‐ The new Tucker High School is going to have a ridiculously low 
number of 30 or so seats for students added to it. When building a new school, why would it be just big enough to house 
virtually the same number of students as the old one did? And if it’s the same, why would you try to move much larger 
numbers of students to it from areas that are happy with their current schools? This is exactly the kind of change that 
people are extremely unhappy about.  
 
While we feel strongly about the above items, I do feel like this is the kind of situation that HCPS will move forward on, 
no matter what anyone says. Therefore to close, I’d like to express my support for the only version of all the plans for 
Elementary, Middle, and High that are ideal for us. Option D3 at each level is what our community would strongly desire 
and support as it reduces the impact on families the most.  
 
Thank you, 
‐‐Matt Alligood— 
804‐647‐7843 
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Justin M. Briggs (jmbriggs)

From: Superintendent
Sent: Monday, February 10, 2020 2:14 PM
To: Ilana Matfis
Cc: Christopher A. Sorensen (casorensen); Justin M. Briggs (jmbriggs)
Subject: RE: redistricting/ option E3

Good afternoon, 
 
Good afternoon, Mr. and Mrs. Hallett, 
 
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
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From: Ilana Matfis <ilanamatfis@gmail.com>  
Sent: Monday, February 10, 2020 10:04 AM 
To: Superintendent <Superintendent@henrico.k12.va.us> 
Subject: redistricting/ option E3 
 

Use Caution: This message originated outside of Henrico County Public Schools. Use caution when opening 
attachments, clicking links or responding to requests for information. 

Dear Dr. Cashwell,  
 
I am writing to ask you to support option E3. This appears to be the only option that meets the committee's own goals, 
in that it reduces concentrations of poverty at Tucker (leaving Freeman to be a more diverse school), respects natural 
boundaries (Broad St), maintains feeder patterns (respecting friendships built from elementary school), and relieves 
overcrowding at Freeman and Tuckahoe Middle School. I am also concerned about the more dangerous route from my 
neighborhood to Tucker. There is a 350% increase in crashes on the route from the Crestview neighborhood to Tucker, 
compared to the route from Crestview to Freeman. This is especially concerning when considering new and 
inexperienced drivers are on the road.  
 
Thank you for listening to my concerns, 
Ilana Matfis (parent in the Crestview neighborhood) 
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Justin M. Briggs (jmbriggs)

From: Superintendent
Sent: Monday, February 10, 2020 2:14 PM
To: Susan Hallett; Roscoe D. Cooper, III (rdcooper); Michelle F. Ogburn (mfogburn1); 

Marcie F. Shea (mfshea); Alicia S. Atkins (asatkins); Kristi B. Kinsella (kbkinsella)
Cc: John Hallett; Christopher A. Sorensen (casorensen); Justin M. Briggs (jmbriggs)
Subject: RE: School Redistricting

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
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From: Susan Hallett <susanhallett6@gmail.com>  
Sent: Monday, February 10, 2020 10:07 AM 
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
Cc: John Hallett <jth9777@gmail.com> 
Subject: School Redistricting 
 

Use Caution: This message originated outside of Henrico County Public Schools. Use caution when opening 
attachments, clicking links or responding to requests for information. 

Dear School Board Members and Superintendent Cashwell, we are writing today to express our support for redistricting 
option D3 and our concerns for option E3.  As parents of students at Maybeury Elementary and Tuckhoe Middle Schools, 
we feel that maintaining the feeder pattern from Maybeury to Tuckahoe to Freeman is critical for the social 
development and academic success of our children and their peers.    
 
Option E3 disrupts feeder patterns in a negative way. The E plan would only leave 1 elementary school without a split, 
26 splitting once, and 18 splitting twice. Further, E3 splits every single middle school in the county except for 1. Research 
on feeder patterns informs us that splitting feeder patterns cause greater disruption of existing social relationships and 
weakens student performance during transitions from one school level to the next.      
 
In addition, option E takes away key PTA fundraising dollars from both TMS and Freeman.  The economic disadvantage 
rate at Godwin is 16% vs. 31% at Freeman ‐ it will negatively impact Freeman by moving high home value neighborhoods 
to Godwin, which has less economically disadvantaged students. This change does not align with the stated goal of 
redistricting to “reduce concentrations of poverty while balancing a community or neighborhood school concept”. 
 
Our girls have thrived in Henrico County Public Schools and we are so grateful for the amazing teachers and 
administrators who have supported their academic and social growth.  We sincerely hope that they will continue on that 
path with redistricting option D3. 
 
Thank you very much for your consideration and all that you do for students in Henrico County! 
 
Susan and John Hallett 
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Justin M. Briggs (jmbriggs)

From: Superintendent
Sent: Monday, February 10, 2020 2:07 PM
To: Kimberly Rudolph
Cc: Christopher A. Sorensen (casorensen); Justin M. Briggs (jmbriggs)
Subject: RE: Support for D3 - Keeping the Maybeury community together

Good afternoon, Ms. Rudolph, 
 
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
 

 
 
 
 

From: Kimberly Rudolph <kimberlyhrudolph@gmail.com>  
Sent: Monday, February 10, 2020 10:39 AM 
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To: Superintendent <Superintendent@henrico.k12.va.us> 
Subject: Fwd: Support for D3 ‐ Keeping the Maybeury community together 
 

Use Caution: This message originated outside of Henrico County Public Schools. Use caution when opening 
attachments, clicking links or responding to requests for information. 

 
Good morning Dr. Amy Cashwell,  
 
I am a Henrico resident with 2 young daughters that I hope to send to Maybeury in the coming years.  
 
I am writing you to oppose option E3 and support option D3 which will keep the Maybeury community together.  
 
Please let me know if I can show my support in any meaningful way. 
 
Best 
Kimberly Rudolph 
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Justin M. Briggs (jmbriggs)

From: Cheryl L. Guempel (clguempel)
Sent: Monday, February 10, 2020 1:04 PM
To: Anne W. Pruden (awpruden)
Cc: Christopher A. Sorensen (casorensen); Justin M. Briggs (jmbriggs)
Subject: RE: redistricting 

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
Sent: Monday, February 10, 2020 10:58 AM 
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To: Superintendent <Superintendent@henrico.k12.va.us> 
Subject: redistricting  
 

Good Morning Dr.Cashwell,  
I am writing you regarding the redistricting plan for our county. I have been an employee with the county for 16
plus years and I absolutely love Henrico County. I would like to thank you for all your hard work on tackling this
huge task of redistricting.  

 

My daughters attend Crestview Elementary School. Which is one of the best schools in the county! It is 
really a hidden gem. It is so diverse both culturally and economically. I am very concerned about the option 
D3. This option changes my daughters high school from Freeman to Tucker High School. I am concerned 
about many things. One being their safety, The route to Tucker that HCPS Transportation recommends 
(Broad  Street  I‐64  to  Parham)   is  a  350%  increase  in  crashes  compared  to  our  current  route  for 
Freeman.  Freeman is significantly closer to our neighborhoods. Moving us to Tucker would add ~ 2 miles 
to each route which increases potential accident risk.  Imagine new teen drivers traveling that route during 
rush hour! Another concern of mine is the community component. My girls attend the JCC and participate 
in sports with children that all feed into Tuckahoe and Freeman. The pool we attend is made up of families 
of  Freeman High  School.  They have  already  established  such  strong  relationships with  these  children. 
Crestview has such a strong connection with Freeman high school. Many of our TMS students have had 
opportunities to play with the Freeman band and play  in Freeman sports. Some of Freeman’s athletes 
coachTMS athletic clubs. Our students already have so many role models and mentors at Freeman. They 
walk from TMS to Freeman to practice and participate with Freeman band and sports. The ability to walk 
between  the  schools  is  critical  for  these  students  to  be  able  to  participate  in  such  events.  These 
partnerships and convenience to get to the related events will only be available if our children remain at 
Freeman.  As a parent, a resident of Henrico county and a long time employee of Henrico County I feel 
that option E3 is the most reasonable. It appears to meet all the goals of redistricting and criteria. It impacts 
the least amount of students, county wide.  It  is a better balance of socioeconomic diversity across the 
schools. Which is one of the many reasons I love Henrico County Schools. If Freeman loses Crestview, then 
Freeman  loses  a  significant  amount  of  socioeconomic  &  cultural  diversity  and  Tucker  will  gain  a 
larger concentration of poverty. Freeman NEEDS Crestview! This option would fulfill the goal of filling the 
newly built Tucker High School. It would also decrease the concentration of poverty at Tucker. It does a 
better job with the feeder patterns and continuity of child’s K‐12 progress. And most importantly, It relives 
the  capacity  at  Freeman  and  TMS.  This  seems  so  crucial  to me  as  a  teacher  and  a  parent. Having  an 
overcrowded school and classroom is not ideal for students or teachers. Teachers work so hard and having 
a class that is at capacity makes our job very difficult. I feel that teachers get burnt out very quickly and 
one of the reasons is due to this issue. I think that if you went with option D3 a lot of amazing teachers 
would eventually leave the county. Finally, Crestview area is one of the older, most established areas in 
Henrico  County.  There  is  no  more  room  for  growth!  Keeping  Crestview  at  Freeman  would  not  add 
additional  students  to  Freeman  in  the  near  or  far  future,  therefore minimizing  need  for  redistricting 
changes in the future. Tucker has the capacity for areas in Western and Northern Henrico that do have 
room for future growth. I appreciate all of your hard work. Thank you so much for taking time to hear from 
teachers, parents, and residents of Henrico County.  
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
Sent: Monday, February 10, 2020 1:02 PM
To: Leslie Harris
Cc: Christopher A. Sorensen (casorensen); Justin M. Briggs (jmbriggs)
Subject: RE: Support for redistricting option E3

Good afternoon, Ms. Harris, 
 
Thank you for taking the time to share your thoughts. I am responding on behalf of Dr. Cashwell. 
 
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
 
Again, I appreciate you sharing your perspective, 
 
Cheri Guempel 
Policy & Constituency Services 
Henrico County Public Schools 
Office (804) 652-3714 
Fax (804) 652-3856 
www.henricoschools.us 
HCPS Policies & Regulations 
 

 
 
 
 

From: Leslie Harris <monkeyfish@gmail.com>  
Sent: Monday, February 10, 2020 12:03 PM 
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To: Superintendent <Superintendent@henrico.k12.va.us> 
Subject: Support for redistricting option E3 
 

Use Caution: This message originated outside of Henrico County Public Schools. Use caution when opening 
attachments, clicking links or responding to requests for information. 

I am writing today to express my enthusiastic support for redistricting Option E3.  Of all the 
options created thus far by the committee, E3 best meets the stated guidelines and goals by: 

        Impacting the least students, county-wide 
        Better balancing utilization and socioeconomic diversity across schools 
        Fulfilling the goal of filling the newly re-built Tucker 
        Decreasing the current concentration of poverty at Tucker 
        Doing a better job with feeder patterns and the continuity of K-12 progress that our 
children deserve, county-wide 
        Relieving capacity issues at Freeman High and Tuckahoe Middle 
        Meeting Safety goals by keeping commute times to familiar and smaller roads – 
moving Crestview to Tucker has a route that has a 350% increase in crashes compared to 
our current route to Freeman! 

  

E3 meets the goals of the committee better than D3, which would push TMS to 99% capacity 
and Godwin to 99%.   The argument that the Pemberton corridor was moved 9 years ago is 
immaterial – the children being impacted by this redistricting are not the same children (and in 
most cases, not even the same families) that were impacted back then.  The plan to move 
Crestview out of Freeman didn’t make sense then for the same reasons it doesn’t 
now:  geography, diversity, and community.  We have no growth in our small community, we 
are in old established small neighborhoods that back up to the Richmond City line (which literally 
runs through my back yard, by the way!)  Moving us because of growth in other communities 
that are closer to more Western schools makes no sense whatsoever. 

The families of Crestview Elementary are a Near West End community and Freeman is our Near 
West End school.  Our children currently in Tuckahoe Middle School are already forming 
relationships with older students at Freeman, and with staff at Freeman that would be stripped 
from them if they were moved to Tucker.  The sports and music programs and Freeman are 
heavily involved with coaching and supporting younger students at Tuckahoe, and that 
relationship hinges largely on geography and the fact that students can walk between schools for 
before school band practices and after school sports practices.  I saw this first hand with my 
currently Sophomore’s experience with the band programs at Tuckahoe and Freeman – he has 
been a member of the Freeman marching band since 8th grade and it had a massive impact on 
his ability to assimilate into the Freeman community so successfully as a 9th grader.  My 6th 
grade son has been helping the Freeman marching band for 3 seasons now and is eagerly 
awaiting his chance to join in 8th grade and play throughout high school.  This is the same 
student who participated as a 5th grader in a pyramid concert where he sang with students from 
Tuckahoe Middle and Freeman, to encourage continued participation in music.  These kinds of 
programs are integral parts of our close-knit community and they help our children grow and 
adjust to the next phase of their educational careers at every step of the way, built over years of 
opportunities like these.  None of this support and community exist for us at Tucker, and to 
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move us out of Freeman would strip all of this away from our students and gut their transition to 
high school.   

 
‐‐  
Leslie Watson Harris 
 
 



78

Justin M. Briggs (jmbriggs)

From: Cheryl L. Guempel (clguempel)
Sent: Monday, February 10, 2020 1:01 PM
To: patrick stage
Cc: Christopher A. Sorensen (casorensen); Justin M. Briggs (jmbriggs)
Subject: RE: To all who is deciding where the new school zone boundaries will be drawn

Good afternoon, Mr. Stage, 
 
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
 

 
 
 
 

From: patrick stage <we4stages@gmail.com>  
Sent: Monday, February 10, 2020 12:22 PM 
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To: Superintendent <Superintendent@henrico.k12.va.us> 
Subject: To all who is deciding where the new school zone boundaries will be drawn 
 

Use Caution: This message originated outside of Henrico County Public Schools. Use caution when opening 
attachments, clicking links or responding to requests for information. 

To all who is deciding where the new school zone boundaries will be drawn ‐  Keeping the crestview area at Freeman per 
option E3 appears to align with county goals the best. 
 
My name is Patrick  I'm a 37 year old father of (3) girls , one of which is a Freeman 2019 grad and currently attending 
JMU ( Go Rebels and Dukes). My middle daughter attended Crestview Elementary , currently is at Tuckahoe Middle and 
hopefully is on track to attend Freeman , just like big sister. My youngest daughter will be old enough to attend 
Crestview in a few more years. 
 
I live on Harvard Rd,  in the Crestview neighborhood. We are a very culturally diverse community. Because of the 
diversity within our neighborhood Freeman and our children benefit greatly. Example: Living to the left of me is a family 
with children of middle eastern ethnicity and to the right a family with children of both Latino and Asian ethnicity. That's 
just a small sample of the neighborhood's broad diversity. If we're re‐located to Tucker , Freeman will lose a huge 
percentage of this current/future diversity and it will be added to Tucker's already higher percentage. This doesn't seem 
like it aligns with county goals in this matter. 
 
Another concern I have is the commute and adjustments we will have to make as a family for our child attending Tucker. 
Freeman highschools location within our community gives it that "in our backyard feel". We can commute to school 
without ever having to travel on Parham Rd. Having to commute to Tucker is going to add 20min plus and take us out of 
our community where we live , play , socialize and shop. Currently, we only have 3 stoplights separating us from 
Freeman high school. If we're re‐located to Tucker we will have two options of travel to and from the school. Option A : 
Travel on Parham rd (heavy traffic pattern), takes us from 3 stoplights to 8 and crossing the on / off ramp of a major 
interstate . Option B : travel on West Broad St.(heavy traffic pattern), takes us from 3 stoplights to 11 and crossing the 
on / off ramp of a major interstate. These travel options will add a level of stress, safety and inconvenience to us as a 
family that we're currently not faced with. 
 
The Last thing that I worry about is our children having to leave important friendships developed from elementary 
school through middle school behind. Middle school is full of huge changes in our children's lives. Our children go 
through these changes together as close‐knit groups and as friends. I worry that our children's education will be 
impacted by dealing with the emotional stress associated with leaving familiar groups / friends behind. 
 
Hopefully, this adds value to a difficult decision. 
 
Respectfully, 
Patrick  
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Justin M. Briggs (jmbriggs)

From: patrick stage <we4stages@gmail.com>
Sent: Monday, February 10, 2020 12:22 PM
To: Christopher A. Sorensen (casorensen); Matthew Cropper; Justin M. Briggs (jmbriggs)
Subject: To all who is deciding where the new school zone boundaries will be drawn

Use Caution: This message originated outside of Henrico County Public Schools. Use caution when opening 
attachments, clicking links or responding to requests for information. 

To all who is deciding where the new school zone boundaries will be drawn -  Keeping the crestview area at 
Freeman per option E3 appears to align with county goals the best. 
 
My name is Patrick  I'm a 37 year old father of (3) girls , one of which is a Freeman 2019 grad and currently 
attending JMU ( Go Rebels and Dukes). My middle daughter attended Crestview Elementary , currently is at 
Tuckahoe Middle and hopefully is on track to attend Freeman , just like big sister. My youngest daughter will 
be old enough to attend Crestview in a few more years. 
 
I live on Harvard Rd,  in the Crestview neighborhood. We are a very culturally diverse community. Because of 
the diversity within our neighborhood Freeman and our children benefit greatly. Example: Living to the left of 
me is a family with children of middle eastern ethnicity and to the right a family with children of both Latino 
and Asian ethnicity. That's just a small sample of the neighborhood's broad diversity. If we're re-located to 
Tucker , Freeman will lose a huge percentage of this current/future diversity and it will be added to Tucker's 
already higher percentage. This doesn't seem like it aligns with county goals in this matter. 
 
Another concern I have is the commute and adjustments we will have to make as a family for our child 
attending Tucker. Freeman highschools location within our community gives it that "in our backyard feel". We 
can commute to school without ever having to travel on Parham Rd. Having to commute to Tucker is going to 
add 20min plus and take us out of our community where we live , play , socialize and shop. Currently, we only 
have 3 stoplights separating us from Freeman high school. If we're re-located to Tucker we will have two 
options of travel to and from the school. Option A : Travel on Parham rd (heavy traffic pattern), takes us from 3 
stoplights to 8 and crossing the on / off ramp of a major interstate . Option B : travel on West Broad St.(heavy 
traffic pattern), takes us from 3 stoplights to 11 and crossing the on / off ramp of a major interstate. These travel 
options will add a level of stress, safety and inconvenience to us as a family that we're currently not faced with. 
 
The Last thing that I worry about is our children having to leave important friendships developed from 
elementary school through middle school behind. Middle school is full of huge changes in our children's lives. 
Our children go through these changes together as close-knit groups and as friends. I worry that our children's 
education will be impacted by dealing with the emotional stress associated with leaving familiar groups / friends 
behind. 
 
Hopefully, this adds value to a difficult decision. 
 
Respectfully, 
Patrick  
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Justin M. Briggs (jmbriggs)

From: Leslie Harris <monkeyfish@gmail.com>
Sent: Monday, February 10, 2020 12:02 PM
To: Matthew Cropper; Christopher A. Sorensen (casorensen); Justin M. Briggs (jmbriggs)
Subject: Support for redistricting Option E3

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

 
 
--  
Leslie Watson Harris 
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Justin M. Briggs (jmbriggs)

From: Cheryl L. Guempel (clguempel)
Sent: Monday, February 10, 2020 9:21 AM
To: Cassie Wolfe
Cc: Michelle F. Ogburn (mfogburn1); Kristi B. Kinsella (kbkinsella); Marcie F. Shea (mfshea); 

Alicia S. Atkins (asatkins); Roscoe D. Cooper, III (rdcooper); Justin M. Briggs (jmbriggs); 
Christopher A. Sorensen (casorensen)

Subject: RE: Urgent issue with redistricting meeting - Feb 19

Good morning, Ms. Wolfe, 
 
Thank you for your email.  I am responding on behalf of Dr. Cashwell. 
 
I have forwarded your concern to Chris Sorensen, Chief of Finance, and Justin Briggs, Planning Specialist, so they can 
ensure your concern reaches the committee. 
 
Kind regards, 
 
Cheri Guempel 
Policy & Constituency Services 
Henrico County Public Schools 
Office (804) 652‐3714 
Fax (804) 652‐3856 
www.henricoschools.us 
HCPS Policies & Regulations 
 
 
 
 
 
‐‐‐‐‐Original Message‐‐‐‐‐ 
From: Cassie Wolfe <wolfe.cassie@gmail.com>  
Sent: Friday, February 7, 2020 4:48 PM 
To: Superintendent <Superintendent@henrico.k12.va.us> 
Cc: Michelle F. Ogburn (mfogburn1) <mfogburn1@henrico.k12.va.us>; Kristi B. Kinsella (kbkinsella) 
<kbkinsella@henrico.k12.va.us>; Marcie F. Shea (mfshea) <mfshea@henrico.k12.va.us>; Alicia S. Atkins (asatkins) 
<asatkins@henrico.k12.va.us>; Roscoe D. Cooper, III (rdcooper) <rdcooper@henrico.k12.va.us> 
Subject: Urgent issue with redistricting meeting ‐ Feb 19 
 
Use Caution: This message originated outside of Henrico County Public Schools. Use caution when opening attachments, 
clicking links or responding to requests for information. 
 
________________________________ 
 
> Good afternoon Super Intendant and School Board Members, 
> 
> I attended the school redistricting committee meeting last.  I am very concerned about how this process is being 
managed.  As a Maybeury community we have not been effected by the redistricting process until last week when a 
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brand new map was introduced that would split our Elementary school up and many others who watch on terrified and 
confused this week. 
> 
> Based on what I have now learned about the process so far, there was an original map (A) which over time went 
through iterations (B,C) and eventually D based on feedback through the website, emails to school board, and 2 public 
feedback sessions over the last several months.  The committee members shared with us that option E was introduced 
due to a specific community being frustrated with their path.  Let me repeat, a completely new map ‐ not an iteration of 
the existing maps that had been vetted for months was put on the table. 
> 
> At this week’s meetings, the new map was treated exactly as same as the vetted option D.  Not a single member of the 
committee had seen any feedback on option E from anyone ‐ good or bad.  The sessions looked at tiny population 
tweaks here and there as if Option E had been fully vetted by the communities effected as (A to B to C) D had been done 
for months. 
> 
> Mr. Cropper never introduced the fact that there are new communities effected.  There was no review of any potential 
issues with this map as a whole which now detrimentally splits up 18 elementary schools ‐ many who were there tonight 
so confused how this process was allowed to resume as if map E was equivalent in “time vetted” as D. 
> 
> Being told there is another meeting on Feb 19 where our entered feedback will finally be made available to the 
committee member is not acceptable either.  There should not be another discussion about this map until there is a 
public feeback session.  Again, The process this week of going into tiny neighborhood splits before ever addressing the 
map as a whole is unacceptable. 
> 
> We are requesting that the Feb 19 meeting either becomes a public feedback forum or you delay any other committee 
discussions until the March public sessions.  At the very least, Feb 19 should be a discussion of the new data Mr. Cropper 
is providing and a full review of all of the feedback provided since Map E was created last week ‐ NOT groups dividing up 
to randomly tweak these maps. 
 
Marcie will be joining a meeting with the Maybeury community next Wednesday, and we hope that she will be able to 
come with a solution from you all regarding the Feb 19 meeting. 
 
Thank you so much for everything you do!  I am so sorry we have to send these urgent messages! 
 
Best, 
Cassie Wolfe 
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Justin M. Briggs (jmbriggs)

From: Cheryl L. Guempel (clguempel)
Sent: Monday, February 10, 2020 8:57 AM
To: Lindsay M Andiola
Cc: Justin M. Briggs (jmbriggs); Christopher A. Sorensen (casorensen)
Subject: RE: Redistricting Concerns

Good morning, Ms. Andiola, 
 
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
 
Again, I appreciate you sharing your feedback, 
 
Cheri Guempel 
Policy & Constituency Services 
Henrico County Public Schools 
Office (804) 652-3714 
Fax (804) 652-3856 
www.henricoschools.us 
HCPS Policies & Regulations 
 

 
 
 
 

From: Lindsay M Andiola <lindsaym1983@gmail.com>  
Sent: Saturday, February 8, 2020 1:12 PM 
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To: Superintendent <Superintendent@henrico.k12.va.us> 
Subject: Redistricting Concerns 
 

Use Caution: This message originated outside of Henrico County Public Schools. Use caution when opening 
attachments, clicking links or responding to requests for information. 

Dr. Amy E. Cashwell 
Superintendent of Henrico Schools  
 
Dear Dr. Cashwell, 
 
I am writing this email to communicate my concerns about one of the most recent options put forth on redistricting. 
 
I am strongly against any feeder pattern that splits another elementary school when those kids go to middle school. 
Children should only gain friendship circles as they move up, not lose them. Middle school is a hard enough transition 
without potentially losing half of your friends during the process. Option E (1‐3) is particularly disruptive when it comes 
to feeder patterns and I cannot understand why we would pursue an option that is more disruptive than what Henrico 
already has. Currently HCPS has 6 elementary schools with a direct feeder pattern (meaning students stay together from 
elementary to high school‐this is ideal for the well‐being of the students), 25 that split once, and 13 that split twice. The 
E plan would only leave 2 elementary schools without a split, 25 splitting once, and 18 splitting twice. Further, E1 splits 
every single middle school in the county except for 1. Research on feeder patterns informs us that splitting feeder 
patterns cause greater disruption of existing social relationships and weakens student performance during transitions 
from one school level to the next. 
In addition, and particularly to the Maybeury to Freeman link, Option E takes away key PTA fundraising dollars from both 
Tuckahoe Middle and Freeman High. The economic disadvantage rate at Godwin is 16 percent vs. 31 percent at 
Freeman, so it will negatively impact Freeman to take high home value neighborhoods and move them to Godwin, which 
has less economically disadvantaged students. Additionally, this change does not align with the stated goal of 
redistricting to “reduce concentrations of poverty while balancing a community or neighborhood school concept”. I 
strongly support option D2 which I view as the least disruptive option. 
 
Please consider what is least disruptive for the children of our community. 
 
Thank you for your attention to my concerns. 
 
Lindsay Andiola, PhD and CPA 
Assistant Professor of Accounting at VCU 
Contact Number: 617‐922‐3791 
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Justin M. Briggs (jmbriggs)

From: Superintendent
Sent: Monday, February 10, 2020 8:56 AM
To: Elizabeth Vosmik; Roscoe D. Cooper, III (rdcooper); Michelle F. Ogburn (mfogburn1); 

Marcie F. Shea (mfshea); Alicia S. Atkins (asatkins); Kristi B. Kinsella (kbkinsella); 
Superintendent

Cc: Justin M. Briggs (jmbriggs); Christopher A. Sorensen (casorensen)
Subject: RE: HCPS redistricting: please support option D3

Good morning, Ms. Vosmik, 
 
 
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
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From: Elizabeth Vosmik <ebvosmik@gmail.com>  
Sent: Sunday, February 9, 2020 11:10 AM 
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
Subject: HCPS redistricting: please support option D3 
 

Use Caution: This message originated outside of Henrico County Public Schools. Use caution when opening 
attachments, clicking links or responding to requests for information. 

Superintendent Cashwell and Members of the HCPS School Board:  
I would like to add my voice to those in strong support of redistricting option D3. My children are currently students at 
Tuckahoe Middle School and Douglas S. Freeman HS. Our family moved to our current home from the City of Richmond 
specifically to take part in the great communities at these 2 outstanding institutions. Option E3 would change both of 
these school communities for the worse. There are many reasons that we support option D3:  

 Option E3 disrupts feeder patterns in a negative way: Currently HCPS has 6 elementary schools with a direct 
feeder pattern (meaning students stay together from elementary to high school‐this is ideal for the well‐being 
of the students), 25 that split once, and 13 that split twice. The E plan would only leave 1 elementary school 
without a split, 26 splitting once, and 18 splitting twice. Further, E3 splits every single middle school in the 
county except for 1. Research on feeder patterns informs us that splitting feeder patterns cause greater 
disruption of existing social relationships and weakens student performance during transitions from one 
school level to the next.    

 Option D3 impacts fewer middle school and high school students than option E3. Option E3  splits Maybeury 
(which our daughters attended) and displaces students in neighborhoods in the Pemberton Road corridor, 
Church Run, and Covered Bridge, among others.  

 Option E takes away key PTA fundraising dollars from both TMS and Freeman.  The economic disadvantage rate 
at Godwin is 16% vs. 31% at Freeman ‐ it will negatively impact Freeman by moving high home value 
neighborhoods to Godwin, which has less economically disadvantaged students. Option E does not align with 
the stated goal of redistricting to “reduce concentrations of poverty while balancing a community or 
neighborhood school concept”. 

Thank you for your time and consideration, and I am hopeful that D3 will be the option you choose. 
 
Please let me know if you have any questions. 
 
Thanks again, 
Elizabeth Vosmik 
804‐267‐9219 



89

Justin M. Briggs (jmbriggs)

From: Cheryl L. Guempel (clguempel)
Sent: Monday, February 10, 2020 8:56 AM
To: Carrie Acey; Roscoe D. Cooper, III (rdcooper); Michelle F. Ogburn (mfogburn1); Kristi B. 

Kinsella (kbkinsella); Marcie F. Shea (mfshea); Alicia S. Atkins (asatkins)
Cc: Justin M. Briggs (jmbriggs); Christopher A. Sorensen (casorensen)
Subject: RE: Henrico Co Redistricting 

Good morning, Ms. Acey, 
 
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
 

 
 
 
 

From: Carrie Acey <linovet1@gmail.com>  
Sent: Sunday, February 9, 2020 2:02 PM 
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
Subject: Henrico Co Redistricting  
 

Use Caution: This message originated outside of Henrico County Public Schools. Use caution when opening 
attachments, clicking links or responding to requests for information. 

Dear School Board and Superintendent, 
 
I strongly support Option D1/D2 and oppose Option E1/E2. Enabling each class of students to remain together as they 
progress through middle and high school is important. But more important is the impact that Option D1/D2 would have 
on PTA fundraising, specifically the diversion of funds from a school with a 31% economic disadvantage rate (Freeman) 
to a school with a 16% economic disadvantage rate (Godwin). The diversity of socioeconomic backgrounds is a key 
strength of the Maybeury/Tuckahoe/Freeman district. This is why we moved to the Tuckahoe district! Option D1/D2 
would destroy that balance, making Freeman more economically disadvantaged and LESS DIVERSE vis‐a‐vis Godwin. This 
makes no sense.   
 
Respectfully, 
 
Carrie Acey (Mom to 2 Maybeury Elementary students and 1 TMS student) 
 
 

******************** 
Carrie Acey 
(804) 475-9544 
linovet1@gmail.com 
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Justin M. Briggs (jmbriggs)

From: Superintendent
Sent: Monday, February 10, 2020 8:54 AM
To: Dexter Hurt
Cc: Christopher A. Sorensen (casorensen); Justin M. Briggs (jmbriggs)
Subject: RE: HCPS Redistricting - Supporting Option E3

Good morning, Mr. Hurt, 
 
Thank you for taking the time to share your concerns. 
 
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
 
The School Board will not make any final decisions regarding redistricting until the spring of 2020. Clearly, a lot can 
happen for the committee as they work to make recommendations to the School Board. 
 
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
 

 
 
 
 

From: Dexter Hurt <dexhurt@gmail.com>  
Sent: Monday, February 10, 2020 8:39 AM 
Subject: HCPS Redistricting ‐ Supporting Option E3 
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Use Caution: This message originated outside of Henrico County Public Schools. Use caution when opening 
attachments, clicking links or responding to requests for information. 

Dear School Board Representative, 

First, let me thank you for you service to the Henrico County community.  I know through my board positions that 

serving as a representative is a time consuming and thankless job at times. Please know that your dedication is greatly 

appreciated and recognized. 

As a resident of the near west end community that feeds Crestview/Tuckahoe MS/Freeman HS, the redistricting options 

are proposed to have a drastic affect on my family and community. Reviewing the various options put forth by the 

committee I see pros and cons with each option. I will say I greatly support option E3 as it allows my family to continue 

to participate with the teachers, coaches, friends and school community we have built over the last 20 years in the 

school system and community.  My daughter attended Crestview/Tuckahoe Middle/Freemen and now in her 3rd year at 

JMU. My boys are now a Freeman Freshman athlete and a Tuckahoe Middle 7th grader. They are the ones greatest 

affected by these options as it will likely push them to a different school. 

The proposed redistricting option that moves the Crestview community posses a serious safety issue as the route to 

Tucker that HCPS Transportation recommends (Broad Street to I‐64 to Parham) is a 350% increase in crashes compared 

to our current route for Freeman.  

The community has a deep‐rooted relationship with TMS and Freeman with extracurricular activities such as band, 

chorus, and sports. As mentioned, boys are athletes and have invested numerous hours in the relationship of TMS and 

Freeman. I really don’t want to see them pulled from the connections with coaches, teachers and administrators that 

they have come to trust and work with so well. Not selecting option E3 changes the opportunities my kids and the 

family’s kids in the community have to participate in band, chorus, and other Freeman sports. Our kids already have 

role models and mentors at Freeman! Our kids WALK from TMS to Freeman to practice and participate with Freeman 

band and sports. The ability to walk between the schools is critical for these kids to be able to participate in such 

events. These partnerships and convenience to get to the related events will ONLY be available to our children if we 

remain at Freeman! 

In understanding the purpose behind redistricting, it makes sense that you need to realign the student population to 

address overcrowding and future growth.  Your decision is not an easy one as it has a profound shakeup effect on many 

communities. However, looking a the E3 versus D3 option, I see some points that I hope you will consider.  I completely 

support option E3 for the following reasons: 

 Appears to meet all goals of redistricting guidelines/criteria. 

 Impacts the least number of students, county wide! 

 Better balances utilization and socioeconomic diversity across all schools. 

 Fulfills the goal of filling the newly built Tucker HS. 

 Decreases concentration of poverty at Tucker.  

 Does a better job with feeder patterns and continuity of child's K‐12 progress county‐wide 

 Relives capacity at Freeman and TMS!  Relieving capacity at Freeman makes room for Regency development. 

(Option D puts TMS and Godwin at 99% capacity, not acceptable) 



93

The many splits in Option E help to support the overcapacity issues of the high schools by splitting at the ES and MS 

level.  It is a fact that the West End school systems are full and cannot support 100% feeder patterns any longer.  

Again, I understand your decision is not an easy one but must be made with facts. I hope the facts and information I 

have provided has some weight in the option you vote.  Thank you for your time and listening to my position. I look 

forward to hearing more and talking about any of the things that have been discussed above. 

Yours Truly, 

Dexter C. Hurt 

 
____________________________________________________  
“The greatness of a man is not in how much wealth he acquires, but in his integrity and his ability to affect those around 
him positively” ‐‐ Bob Marley 
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Justin M. Briggs (jmbriggs)

From: Superintendent
Sent: Monday, February 10, 2020 8:53 AM
To: Valerie Hendricks; Justin M. Briggs (jmbriggs); Christopher A. Sorensen (casorensen); 

Matthew Cropper; Monica R. Manns (mmanns); Cara Jean L. O'Neal (cloneal); Michelle 
F. Ogburn (mfogburn1); Kristi B. Kinsella (kbkinsella); Marcie F. Shea (mfshea); Alicia S. 
Atkins (asatkins); Roscoe D. Cooper, III (rdcooper)

Subject: RE: Redistricting process

Good morning, Ms. Hendricks, 
 
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
 
I see you have copied Chris Sorensen, Chief of Finance, and Justin Briggs, Education Specialist for Planning. Both are 
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
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From: Valerie Hendricks <vlbell@yahoo.com>  
Sent: Sunday, February 9, 2020 6:46 PM 
To: Justin M. Briggs (jmbriggs) <jmbriggs@henrico.k12.va.us>; Christopher A. Sorensen (casorensen) 
<casorensen@henrico.k12.va.us>; Matthew Cropper <mcropper@croppergis.com>; Superintendent 
<Superintendent@henrico.k12.va.us>; Monica R. Manns (mmanns) <mmanns@henrico.k12.va.us>; Cara Jean L. O'Neal 
(cloneal) <cloneal@henrico.k12.va.us>; Michelle F. Ogburn (mfogburn1) <mfogburn1@henrico.k12.va.us>; Kristi B. 
Kinsella (kbkinsella) <kbkinsella@henrico.k12.va.us>; Marcie F. Shea (mfshea) <mfshea@henrico.k12.va.us>; Alicia S. 
Atkins (asatkins) <asatkins@henrico.k12.va.us>; Roscoe D. Cooper, III (rdcooper) <rdcooper@henrico.k12.va.us> 
Subject: Redistricting process 
 

Use Caution: This message originated outside of Henrico County Public Schools. Use caution when opening 
attachments, clicking links or responding to requests for information. 

I am shocked and saddened at the way the school redistricting process has affected the people of Henrico 
county. It is disrupting families and communities all over the county.  Moms and Dads are missing sporting 
events, family time and other important events to attend meetings when they aren't even on the committee 
making the decisions.  Communities have been pitted against each other and neighbors split during this 
process.  in this world of social media, committee members are being called out by name in negative ways for 
all of the world to see.  Is this really what the county intended? The initial maps drew a lot of criticism from the 
public, as did the next few maps. So, a committee member created his own option and talked other committee 
members into approving it.  Then, one community drew up another map and presented it to the school board 
and asked that everyone who liked it promote it to the committee and school board.  How is this fair to the 
smaller communities that don't have these resources?  I know it's not a flawless process and not everyone will 
be happy in the end.  But, why move people who don't want to move, especially if it's not in accordance to the 
criteria set forth in the beginning of this process.  Why not expand Glen Allen High School?  Or, make Tucker a 
specialty center that people want to go to, I find that to be a recurring theme, people don't want to be moved to 
Tucker, even it is going to be a brand new, state of the art school.  The reasons for this differ from a safety issue 
to it being farther away from the high school they attend now to the test scores being low to it not offering the 
same curriculum as other high schools.  Also, the timing of the redistricting will have the current 8th grade class 
across the county going to one high school for one year then being moved to another high school for the next 3 
years.  That's certainly a conflict that these kids don't need.  Again, I understand that the process is difficult and 
not everyone will be happy, but certainly there is a better way to go about it.  Thank you for your time and 
attention with this matter. 
 
Sincerely:  
 
Valerie Hendricks 
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Justin M. Briggs (jmbriggs)

From: Dexter Hurt <dexhurt@gmail.com>
Sent: Monday, February 10, 2020 8:42 AM
To: Matthew Cropper; Christopher A. Sorensen (casorensen); Justin M. Briggs (jmbriggs)
Subject: HCPS Resdistricting - Support Option E3

Use Caution: This message originated outside of Henrico County Public Schools. Use caution when opening 
attachments, clicking links or responding to requests for information. 

Dear HCPS Representative, 

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
“The greatness of a man is not in how much wealth he acquires, but in his integrity and his ability to affect 
those around him positively” -- Bob Marley 


	Feedback200217Tuckahoe.pdf
	Feedback200217Tuckahoe3.pdf
	210 HS Option D3 Plot 200206
	211 HS Option E3 Plot 200206





